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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PART 1

ITEM 1: Description of Business
General

Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc. (“the Company”) was incorporated as a Florida corporation in April
1990 and reincorporated as an Ohio corporation in May 2002. The Company has one operating subsidiary
company.

Diamond Hill Capital Management, Inc. (“DHCM”), an Ohio corporation, is a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and a registered investment adviser. DHCM is the investment adviser to the Diamond Hill Funds, a
series of open-end mutual funds, Diamond Hill Investment Partners, L.P. (“DHIP”), a private investment
partnership, and also offers advisory services to institutional and individual investors.

- The Company operates primarily as a holding company with investment advisory services provided by
DHCM. The Company maintains an investment portfolio, composed of Diamond Hill Funds and DHIP, which
are managed by DHCM. References to the Company also include references to DHCM.

In May of 2000, with the change in executive management, the Company shifted its emphasis from its
traditional brokerage related activities to its investment advisory services. Staffing, other costs associated with
this shift and various marketing initiatives have negatively impacted the Company since the change.
Management believes that this process was necessary in order to achieve a critical threshold of assets under
management to support operations in the future. The Company has made substantial progress; however, there can
be no assurance the Company will be able to achieve and maintain the critical threshold of assets under
management to support future operations.

During 2004, the Company transitioned the services of its broker-dealer subsidiary, Diamond Hill Securities
(DHS) to third party broker-dealers and to DHCM. During the fourth quarter of 2004 DHS de-registered with the
NASD and SEC as a broker-dealer and investment adviser. This transition had no material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Assets Under Management

As of December 31, 2004, assets under management totaled $523,793,479, a 109% increase from December
31, 2003. The table below provides a summary of assets under management as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:

12/31/2004 12/31/2003 % Change
Separately Managed Accounts .............ccov i, $265,428,049 $142,606,649 86
Mutual Funds . ... ... 237,625,466 95,864,575 148
Private Investment Parthership .. ............................. 20,739,964 11,601,281 87
Total Assets Under Management .......................c..... $523,793,479 $250,072,505 109

Investment Advisory Activities
Diamond Hill Capital Management

DHCM executes its investment strategies through fundamental research. Analysts evaluate a company’s
prospects based upon its current business and financial position, future growth opportunities, and management
capability and strategy. The intended result is a good estimate of “intrinsic value”. Intrinsic value is the present
value of all future cash flows, which we estimate the investment will generate, discounted at a rate that reflects
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the required return for the investment given the estimated level of risk. In other words, it is the estimated price a
minority shareholder should pay in order to achieve a satisfactory or “fair” return on the investment. The estimate
of intrinsic value is then compared to current market prices to evaluate whether, in the opinion of DHCM, an
attractive investment opportunity exists. A proprietary valuation model, which forecasts cash flows for five years
including a “terminal value” (the expected stock price in five years), assists in many of these intrinsic value
estimations. The adviser believes that although securities markets are competitive, pricing inefficiencies often
exist allowing for attractive investment opportunities. Furthermore, DHCM believes that investing in securities
whose market prices are significantly below DHCM’s estimate of intrinsic value (or selling short securities
whose market prices are above intrinsic value) is a reliable method to achieve above average returns as well as
mitigate risk.

Currently available portfolio strategies managed by DHCM include All Cap Concentrated Equity, Small
Cap Equity, Large Cap Equity, Long-Short Equity, Short-Term Fixed Income, and Strategic Income. These
strategies are available on a separately managed basis and/or through a mutual fund.

The Company also offers a private investment partnership, DHIP, a limited partnership that invests in equity
securities. DHCM is the managing member of the DHIP general partner and offers interests in the partnership to
certain institutions and high net worth clients who typically invest at least $500,000 in the partnership.

Business Development

The Company develops investment advisory business with clients through direct contact or through
financial intermediaries. The primary geographic areas are Ohio and Georgia, with current efforts outside these
areas on an opportunistic basis.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company managed approximately $134 million in assets for multiple clients
of Synovus Securities, Inc. (“Synovus”), a broker-dealer located in Columbus, Georgia. The Company has a Sub-
Advisory Agreement with Synovus. These assets, which are in the Company’s separately managed accounts,
private investment partnership, and mutual fund products, make up approximately 25% of the Company’s assets
under management, down from 30% at December 31, 2003.

In addition, the Company has an Investment Advisory Agreement with the Diamond Hill Focus Long-Short
Fund for which it derived 13% of its revenue from for 2004. This is the only client which represented more than
10% of its 2004 revenues.

For direct investment advisory business, the Company currently relies upon existing relationships with
former clients and contacts of DHCM associates. The Company has also developed numerous relationships with
financial intermediaries primarily for distribution of its mutual fund products to the retail market. During 2004,
the Company hired a senior business development associate to focus on the institutional marketplace.

Competition

Competition in the area of investment management services and mutual funds is intense and the Company’s
competitors include investment management firms, broker-dealers, banks and insurance companies. Many
competitors are better known than the Company, are better capitalized, offer a broader range of investment
products and have more offices, employees and sales representatives. The Company competes primarily on the
basis of investment philosophy, performance and customer service.

Investment Portfolio

DHCM holds positions in the Company’s fixed income mutual funds and DHIP.




Regulation

The securities industry is subject to extensive regulation under both federal and state laws. The principal
purpose of regulation of investment advisers is the protection of investors in the securities markets rather than
protection of stockholders of investment advisers. Investment advisers are subject to regulation by the SEC and
state securities commissions in the states in which they are registered.

DHCM operates in this highly regulated environment and is subject to examination and licensing
requirements by federal and state authorities. DHCM is a registered investment adviser and subject to regulation
by the SEC pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

Employees

The Company currently has 19 full-time employees, none of whom are members of a union. The Company
generally believes that its relationship with employees is good.

SEC Filings

This Form 10-KSB report includes financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003. The Company files Forms 10-KSB annually with the SEC and files Forms 10-QSB after
each of the first three fiscal quarters.

ITEM 2: Description of Property

The Company sub-leases approximately 8,500 square feet of office space in_the Arena Office Building
located- at 375 Neorth Front Street, Suite 300, Columbus, Ohio 43215, from an unaffiliated third party for an
aggregate current monthly rental of $10,000 through May 31, 2005. The Company entered into a one year
extension through May 31, 2006 at a monthly rental of $12,750. We believe that our current facility is adequate
to meet our needs for the foreseeable future, and that suitable additional or alternative space will be available in
the future on commercially reasonable terms as needed.

Our current policy is not to invest in real estate or interests in real estate or to acquire assets primarily for
possible capital gain or primarily for income. We do not invest in real estate mortgages or securities of entities
primarily engaged in real estate activities. '

ITEM 3: Legal Proceedings

The Company is not engaged in any litigation, other than routine litigation that is incidental to its business.

ITEM 4: Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted during the most recent quarter to a vote of security holders.




DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PART II

ITEM 5: Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s Common Stock trades on the NASDAQ Small Cap Market under the symbol DHIL. The
range of high and low prices for each quarter since January 1, 2003, are shown below:

Beginning Date Ending Date High Low

January 1, 2003 March 31, 2003 $ 6.11 $4.00
April 1, 2003 June 30, 2003 $ 5.20 $3.90
July 1, 2003 September 30, 2003 $ 510 $3.52
October 1, 2003 ~ December 31, 2003 $ 7.14 $4.51
January 1, 2004 March 31, 2004 $11.00 $6.80
April 1, 2004 June 30, 2004 $10.25 $8.00
July 1, 2004 September 30, 2004 $10.00 $9.00
October 1, 2004 December 31, 2004 $17.50 $9.20

The source of this bid information is Bloomberg L.P. These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without
retail markup, markdown or commissions and may not represent actual transactions. In addition, due to the
relatively “thin” market in the Company’s Common Stock, quoted prices cannot be considered indicative of any
viable market for such stock. During the year ended December 31, 2004, approximately 420,700 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock were traded.

As of December 31, 2004, there were approximately 275 record hoiders of common shares representing
approximately 1,000 beneficial holders. The Company has not paid any dividends during the last two fiscal years

and has no present intention of paying dividends.

Information with respect to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is disclosed
in Item 11 of this Form 10-KSB. '

The Company has made no repurchases of its Common Stock during 2004,




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

ITEM 6: Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

Forward-looking Statements

Throughout this discussion, the Company may make forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 relating to
such matters as anticipated operating results, prospects for achieving the critical threshold of assets under
management, technological developments, economic trends (including interest rates and market volatility),
expected transactions and acquisitions and similar matters. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “project,” “should,” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements that speak only as of
the date thereof. While the Company believes that the assumptions underlying its forward-looking statements are
reasonable, investors are cautioned that any of the assumptions could prove to be inaccurate and, accordingly, the
actual results and experiences of the Company could differ materially from the anticipated results or other
expectations expressed by the Company in its forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause such actual
results or experiences to differ from results discussed in the forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to: the adverse effect from a decline in the securities markets; a decline in the performance of the
Company’s products; a general downturn in the economy; changes in government policy and regulation; changes
in the Company’s ability to attract or retain key employees; unforeseen costs and other effects related to legal
proceedings or investigations of governmental and self-regulatory organizations; and other risks identified from
time-to-time in the Company’s other public documents on file with the SEC.

[ERNT3

General

With the change in executive management in May of 2000, the Company shifted its emphasis from
brokerage related activities, to the investment advisory services of its DHCM subsidiary. DHCM manages
portfolios of equity and fixed income securities representing various economic sectors. Staffing and costs
associated with this shift and the various marketing initiatives at DHCM negatively impacted the Company since
the change. Management believes that this process was necessary in order to achieve a critical threshold of assets
under management to support operations in the future. The Company has made substantial progress, however,
there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to achieve and maintain the critical threshold of assets
under management to support future operations.

Business Prospects Going Forward

The Company’s mutual funds, private investment partnership and separately managed accounts, have
experienced strong relative three to five year investment returns that compare very favorably to competitors. For
example, the six Diamond Hill mutual funds all were ranked in the top quartile of their respective categories at
December 31, 2004 based on the rankings from Lipper Analytical, Inc., a top independent ranking firm. The
investment returns have been a key driver in the success the company has achieved in growing assets under
management at a rate in excess of 100% annually in 2004 and 2003. The company believes that it is appropriate
to increase marketing and sales efforts to continue to grow assets under management which in turn generates
advisory fee revenue.

As a result, the company expects to invest in marketing and development efforts throughout 2005 in an
effort to expand distribution of its services and accelerate growth, such expenditures may include:

* Registering the mutual funds in additional states

¢ Offering I (a.k.a. “Institutional”) shares which should be attractive to fee-only intermediaries

» Set-up and ongoing fees required to add the mutual funds and I share classes to several key brokerage
platforms




* Attending and sponsoring booths at key industry conferences
* Adding additional sales staff and support
+ Creating additional marketing material for the funds and separately managed accounts, and

* Additional costs related to ongoing public relations, promotion and advertising

These efforts in total could cost in a range of $250,000 - $350,000 during 2005 and future years. There can
be no assurance that these efforts will prove successful; however, given the investment results of the company’s
funds and separately managed accounts, the additional resources devoted to marketing seems warranted.

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared to Year ended December 31, 2003

Investment management revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased to $2,468,490 compared
to $1,160,584 for the year ended December 31, 2003, a 113% increase. This increase resulted primarily from new
investment advisory business which increased assets under management from which the Company derives its
revenues.

The Company increased its investment management revenue from all three of its investment products:
mutual funds, managed accounts and its private investment partnership, DHIP. Revenues from mutual funds were
up 119%, for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $465,549 to $1,020,238. Revenues from managed
accounts were up 91%, for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $606,169 to $1,160,674. Investment
management revenue collected from the DHIP, which include a performance incentive fee of approximately
$194,524, grew 224%, increasing from $88,866 to $287,578. Assets under management, which is a key driver of
revenue growth, increased to $523,793,479 as of December 31, 2004, a 109% increase since December 31, 2003.
During 2004, the Company made significant progress toward achieving the critical threshold of assets under
management to support future operations.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased to $2,968,173 from $2,184,801 for the
year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of 36%. This increase is primarily related to staff additions to
support the significant growth in assets under management, and incentive compensation earned related to the
outstanding performance of the Company’s investment products. Non-salary operating expenses were relatively
flat year over year.

Mutual fund administration, which is administrative services fees collected in connection with the
Company’s mutual fund products net of all mutual fund administrative expenses paid by the Company, decreased
from a net expense of $258,226 for the year ended December 31, 2003 to $75,007 for the year ended December
31, 2004, a 70% improvement. This improvement is primarily due to the increase in assets under management in
the Company’s mutual fund products. DHCM has an administrative, fund accounting and transfer agency
services agreement with the Diamond Hill Funds, where DHCM performs certain services for each series of the
trust. These services include mutual fund administration, accounting, transfer agency and other related functions.
For performing these administrative services, each series of the trust compensates DHCM a fee at an annual rate
of 0.45% times each series’ average daily net assets. DHCM collected $619,835 and $268,164 for mutual fund
administration revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In fulfilling its role under
this agreement, DHCM has engaged several third-party providers and the cost for their services are paid by
DHCM. Mutual fund administration expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $694,842 and
$526,390, respectively. As assets under management grow in the mutual fund products, the Company expects the
net mutual fund administration expense to continue to decrease.

Mutual fund distribution, which includes distribution fees collected in connection with sales of the
Company’s mutual funds net of all mutual fund distribution expenses paid by the Company, decreased slightly to
a net expense of $91,940 for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $93,689 for the year ended December 31,
2003, a 2% decrease. For performing these distribution functions, DHS collected front-end and back-end sales
loads, underwriting fees, and 12b-1 fees on fund investments. Mutual fund distribution revenue for the year
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ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $278,262 and $164,732, respectively. This increase in fees is primarily
due to the increase in assets under management in the Company’s mutual fund products. Prior to April 30, 2004
DHS was the principal underwriter for Diamond Hill Funds, an Ohio business trust, and paid third-party financial
institutions a fee for distribution or for performing certain servicing functions for mutual fund shareholders. DHS
and DHCM also pay for the production of marketing materials used in the distribution of the Diamond Hill
Funds. Mutual fund distribution expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $370,202 and
$258,421, respectively. This increase is the result of increased sales of the mutual fund shares in 2004 versus
2003.

Broker-dealer activity, which is revenue from security transactions and market-making activity net of
broker-dealer expenses which are comprised principally of clearing costs and regulatory fees, decreased to a net
income of $2,843 for the year ended December 31, 2004 from a net expense of $18,062 for the year ended
December 31, 2003. Prior to transitioning its services and de-registering as a broker-dealer, DHS transacted
security trades through its clearing broker under a correspondent agreement. For the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, broker-dealer activity expenses were $7,814 and $44,449, respectively. DHS earned
commissions and service fees related to business transacted through its clearing broker, along with gains and
losses from market-making activities. Broker-dealer activity revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 was $10,657 and $26,387, respectively. The decrease in both revenue and expenses is due to the planned
transition of broker-dealer activities to third-party broker-dealers. This transition was completed during 2004 and
the Company is not expected to have any further broker-dealer activity.

The Company’s net operating loss decreased to $663,787 for the year énded December 31, 2004 from
$1.394,194 for the year ended December 31, 2003, a 52% improvement.

Investment return, net of interest expense, increased -to $487,287 for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $400,660 for the year ended December 31, 2003. Management is unable to predict how future fluctuations
in market values will impact the performance of the Company’s investment portfolios. As a result of positive
company portfolio investment performance, the Company’s net operating loss was reduced further, causing the
net loss to decrease to $176,500 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared $993,534 for the year ended
December 31, 2003, an 82% improvement.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s entire investment portfolio is in readily marketable securities, which, provide for cash
liquidity, if needed, within three business days. Investments in mutual funds are valued at their current net asset
value. Investments in DHIP are valued based on readily available market quotations.

On July 22, 2003, the Company sold 110,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, from Treasury
Stock, to certain directors, officers and employees through a private placement at a price of $4.50 per share,
thereby increasing the liquidity and capital resources by approximately $495,000. On July 21, 2004, the
Company sold 60,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, from Treasury Stock through a private
placement at a price of $7.00, thereby increasing the liquidity and capital resources by approximately $420,000.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had working capital of approximately $3.2 million compared to
$2.8 million at December 31, 2003. The increase during the year ended December 31, 2004 is primarily due to
the private placement offset by the net loss as part of operating activities. Working capital includes cash,
securities owned and accounts and notes receivable, net of all liabilities. The Company has no long-term debt.

The Company’s net cash balance increased by $51,581 during the year ended December 31, 2004. Net cash
used by operating activities was $472,112. The primary use of cash flow was the net loss of $176,500. Investing
activities used $24,138 for property and equipment purchased during the year ended December 31, 2004.
Financing activities provided $547,831 of cash during the year ended December 31, 2004, mostly from the
$420,000 private placement on July 21, 2004.




The Company’s net cash balance decreased by $638,190 during the year ended December 31, 2003. Net
cash used by operating activities was $1,154,250. The primary use of cash flow was the net loss of $993,534.
Investing activities used $3,582 for property and equipment purchased during the year ended December 31, 2003,
mostly from the $495,000 private placement on July 22, 2003.

Investment management revenue primarily fund the operations of the Company. Management believes that
the Company’s existing resources, including available cash and cash provided by operating activities, will be
sufficient to satisfy its working capital requirements in the foreseeable future. However, no assurance can be
given that additional funds will not be required. To the extent that returns on investments are less than
anticipated, or expenses are greater than anticipated, the Company may be required to reduce its activities,
liquidate the investment portfolio or seek additional financing. Further, this additional financing may not be
available on acceptable terms, if at all. No significant capital expenditures are expected in the foreseeable future.

Impact of Inflation and Other Factors

The Company’s operations have not been significantly affected by inflation. The Company’s investment
portfolios of equity and fixed income securities are carried at current market values. Therefore, the Company’s
profitability is affected by general economic and market conditions, the volume of securities trading and
fluctuations in interest rates. The Company’s business is also subject to government regulation and changes in
legal, accounting, tax and other compliance requirements. Changes in these regulations may have a significant
effect on the Company’s operations.

DHS, under a correspondent agreement with its clearing broker, has agreed to indemnify the clearing broker
from damages or losses resulting from customers’ transactions. The Company is, therefore, exposed to off-
balance sheet risk of loss in the event that customers are unable to fulfill contractual obligations. The Company
manages this risk by requiring customers to have sufficient cash in their account before a buy order is executed
and to have the subject securities in their account before a sell order is executed. The Company has not incurred
any losses from customers belng unable to fulfill contractual obhgatmns

Except as otherwise disclosed herein, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements with any obligation under
a guarantee contract, or a retained or contingent interest in assets or similar arrangement that serves as credit,
liquidity or market risk support for such assets, or any other obligation, including a contingent obligation, under a
contract that would be accounted for as a derivative instrument.




ITEM 7: Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the shareholders and Board of Directors of
Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial condition of Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc.
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. R

We have conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December
31, 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

BKR Longanbach Giusti, LLC
Columbus, Ohio
January 20, 2005




DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
As of December 31, 2004

AUDITED
ASSETS

Investment portfolio (note 3 and 4):

Mutual fund shares and limited partnershipinterests ......... ... ... ... ...
Accounts receivable:

Investment ProdUCtS ... ...ttt e

Limited partnership interests sold, notyetsettled . ... ....... ... .. .. ... . ...
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $155,913 .. ............ ... ......
Prepaid EXpenses . . ..o ovtt i e
Refundable deposits . ...

TOta] ASSEES .« oottt e

LIABILITIES
ACCTUEA BXPEISES ..\ o vttt ittt ittt e e e

Total Habilithes .. .ottt e e

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock: (note 5)
No par value, 7,000,000 shares authorized,
1,827,972 shares issued and 1,613,060 shares outstanding . .........................
Treasury stock, at cost
(214,902 Shares) ... i e e
Deferred compensation . ...... ...ttt e
Accumulated defiCit . ... ... . e

Total shareholders” equity ....... ... i i i e
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............. .. ... i viiiinnn...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$ 102,566
2,126,130

465,500
900,000
112,955
249,838

10,570

$ 3,967,559

401,220
401,220

10,204,714

(1,229,378)
(124,550)
(5,284,447)

3,566,339

$ 3,967,559




DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

AUDITED
2004 2003

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT REVENUE:

Mutual funds . ... $1,020,238 $ 465,549

Managed accounts ............... T [P 1,160,674 606,169

Private investment partnership . ................... D 287,578 88,866

- Total investment Management TEVENUE . . ... ...enveennennrenernennnn. 2,468,490 1,160,584

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries, beneﬂts and payroll taxes ...........c...oi it 2,276,797 1,520,150

Legaland audit ... ... it e 84,546 70,481

General and adminiStrative . ... ..ottt e e e 415,961 443,802

Salesand marketing . .......c.ov ittt i e e 190,869 150,368

Total Operating XpPenses . .. ... v .t vu e et 2,968,173 2,184,801
OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Mutual fund administration, net (Note 8) . ......... ..t iinnnnn.. (75,007) (258,226)

Mutual fund distribution, net (Note 9) .. ... .. i e (91,940) (93,689)

Broker-dealer, net (Note 10) .. ... o o 2,843 (18,062)
NET OPERATING LOSS .. ... e e e (663,787) (1,394,194)

Investment return, net of interest eXPense . ........ooveuneeenneennnrennenn 487,287 400,660
LOSSBEFORETAXES .............. e e (176,500) (993,534)

Income tax provision (credit) . .. ... .. o e —_ —
NETLOSS ................... R S N $(176,500) $ (993,534)
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS)PERSHARE .. ...... .. 00t ii i $ I(O.l 3 (0.68)
DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE ... .' ........... e RETTR $ ©.11) § (0.68)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Balance at

December 31,2002 .. ..
Exercise of stock options . ..

Amortization of deferred

Compensation . .......
Sale of treasury stock .. ..
Netloss ...............

Balance at

December 31,2003 .. ..

Deferred compensation
related to restricted

stock ... .,

Amortization of deferred

Compensation . .......
Sale of treasury stock . ...
Netloss ...............

Balance at

December 31,2004 . ...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

AUDITED
Retained
Shares Common Treasury Deferred Earnings
Outstanding Stock Stock Compensation (Deficit) Total

1,408,467 $10,023,703 $(2,394,510) $ (15,174) $(3,976,743) $3,637,276
1,000 3,910 3,910
_ _ — 11,430 — 11,430
114,532 (1,902) 655,304 — (137,670) 515,732
— — — — (993,534)  (993,534)
1,523,999 10,025,711  (1,739,206) (3,744)  (5,107,947) 3,174,814
— — — (141,000) — (141,000)
— — — 20,194 — 20,194
89,061 179,003 509,828 — — 688,831
— — — _ (176,500)  (176,500)
1,613,060 $10,204,714 $(1,229,378) $(124,550) $(5,284,447) $3,566,339
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

AUDITED

2004 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Nt 088 vttt et e $(176,500) $ (993,534)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss
to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . .................c...iii.... e 37,926 38,336
Loss on disposal of property and equipment . . . ... FS N 2,921 732
Deferred compensation .. ............oiuneinir i . 20,41 94 - 11,430
Unrealized (gain) 0SS ... ... ..ottt e (352,411)  (401,794)
(Increase) decrease in certain assets—
Investment portfolio ......... ... . .. 958,616 459,942
Accountsreceivable . ... ... e
Investment products . .. ...t e (290,019) 4,941
Sale of Securitiesandother ........... ... oo i, (902,182) (111
Depositsand other . ............ it (33,042) (68,678)
Increase (decrease) in certain liabilities—
Accounts payable to broker-dealers and other .................... (1,589) . 1,589
—-Accrued expenses and-other ............ i i, 263,975 (118,951)
* Net cash used in operating activities . ..................... L. (472,112)  (1,154,250)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment . ........ ... ... .. i i (24,188) (3.582)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment .. ........ ... .. ... ......... 50 —
Net cash used in investing activities . ....................... (24,138) (3,582)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Exercise of stock options .. ....... .. — 3,910

Sale of treasury StocK . . ..o 547,831 515,732

Net cash provided (used) in financing activities ............... 547,831 519,642
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)INCASH .......... ... .. ... ..ccciva.. 51,581 (638,190}
CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD ....... e 50,985 689,175
CASH,END OF PERIOD . .. ... ... e $ 102,566 $§ 50,985

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
915D ¢ =3:] AR $ 1874 %
InCOmME taXES . ..ottt e e —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Note 1 —ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated as a Florida corporation in April
1990 and reincorporated as an Ohio corporation in May 2002. The Company has one operating subsidiary
company.

Diamond Hill Capital Management, Inc. (DHCM), an Ohio corporation, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and a registered investment adviser. DHCM is the investment adviser to the Diamond Hill Funds, a
series of open-end mutual funds, and Diamond Hill Investment Partners, L.P. (“DHIP”), a private investment
partnership, and also offers advisory services to institutional and individual investors.

During 2004, the Company transitioned the services of its broker-dealer subsidiary, Diamond Hill Securities
(DHS) to third party broker-dealers and to DHCM. During the fourth quarter of 2004 DHS de-registered with the
NASD and SEC as a broker-dealer and investment adviser. This transition had no material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Note 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
following is a summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies: '

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the operations of the Company, DHCM and
DHS. All material inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash

The Company has defined cash as demand deposits, certificate of deposits and money market accounts. The
Company maintains its cash in three accounts with two financial institutions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded when they are due and are presented in the statement of financial
condition, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts receivable are written off when they are
determined to be uncollectible. Any allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated on the Company’s historical
losses, existing conditions in the industry, and the financial stability of those individuals that owe the receivable.
No allowance for doubtful accounts was deemed necessary at December 31, 2004,

Valuation of Investment Portfolio

Investments in mutual funds are valued at their current net asset value. Investments in DHIP are valued
based on readily available market quotations. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in investment
profits and losses.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Limited Partnership Interests

DHCM is the managing member of Diamond Hill General Partner, LLC, the General Partner of Diamond
Hill Investment Partners, L.P. (DHIP), a limited partnership whose underlying assets consist of marketable
securities. DHCM's investment in DHIP is accounted for using thé equity method, under which DHCM’s share
of the net earnings or losses of the partnership is reflected in income as earned and distributions received are |
reflected as a reduction of the investment. The Company is actively seeking additional unaffiliated investors for
DHIP. Several board members, officers and employees of the Company are members in Diamond Hill General
Partner, LLC. The capital of Diamond Hill General Partner, LLC is not subject to a management fee or an
incentive fee.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, consisting of computer equipment, furniture, and fixtures, is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated lives of three
to seven years.

Revenues

Securities transactions are accounted for on the trade date basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date and interest income is accrued as earned. Realized gains and losses from sales of securities are
determined utilizing the specific identification method.

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per common share are computed in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators used
in these calculations is shown below:

For the year ended December 31, 2004:

Numerator Denominator Amount

BasicEarnings . ..........cooiiiiiiiiin.... $(176,500) 1,566,385 $(0.11)
Diluted EAININGS « o oo v e $(176,500) 1,566,385  $(0.11)

For the year ended December 31, 2003:

Numerator Denominator Amount

BasicEamnings ...........0. .00 ool $(993,534) 1,458,264 $(0.68)
Diluted Earnings . ............coovvuunnn.. oo $(993.534) 1,458,264 $(0.68)

Stock options and warrants have not been included in the denominator of the diluted per-share computations
because the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Substantially all of the Company’s financial instruments are carried at fair value or amounts approximating
fair value. Assets, including accounts receivable, notes and interest receivable and securities owned are carried at
amounts that approximate fair value. Similarly, liabilities, including accounts payable and accrued expenses are
carried at amounts approximating fair value.

Note 3—INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Investment portfolio balances, which consist of securities classified as trading, are comprised of the
following at December 31, 2004:

Unrealized Unrealized

Market Cost Gains Losses
Diamond Hill Strategic Income Fund .................... $ 846,262 764,753 81,509 —_
Diamond Hill Short Term Fixed IncomeFund ............. 201,566 203,561 — - (1,995)
DHIP Private Partnership (Hedge Fund) .................. 1,078,302 658,281 420,021 —
Total . .o e $2,126,130 $1,626,595 $501,530 $(1,995)

Note: $900,000 was redeemed on December 31, 2004 from DHIP and was reinvested in various Diamond Hill Funds during January 2005.

Investment portfolio balances, which consist of securities classified as trading, are comprised of the
following at December 31, 2003:

- Unrealized Unrealized
Market Cost Gains Losses

Mutual fund shares and limited partnership interest ........ $2,717,226  $2,290,260 $428,171 $ (1,205)
Not readily marketable equity securities ................. 15,108 195,125 — (180,017)
Total ... $2,732,334 $2,485,385 $428,171 $(181,222)
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003
DHCM is the managing member of the General Partner of Diamond Hill Investment Partners, L.P., whose

underlying assets consist primarily of marketable securities. The General Partner is contingently liable for all of
the partnership’s liabilities. :

Summary financial information, including the Company’s carrying value and income from this partnership
at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and for the years then ended, is as follows:

2004 2003
Total aSSets ... ..ot $40,934.365  $21.505.686
Total liabilities .. ... .. ..o e 20,194,401 9,904,405
Nt S80S « o v vt e e e e 20,739,964 11,601,281
Net fair maxket value of earnings ...................... 4,519,117 1,967,729
DHCM’s carrying value ..........covvrinnnneenennn.. 1,078,302 1,363,450

DHCM’SINCOME « ... ovtvee ittt 614,852 223,852

DHCM’s income from this partnership includes its pro-rata capital allocation and its share of an incentive
allocation from the limited partners. DHCM earned the following management fee and incentive fee from the
partnership. DHCM shares a portion of its Management Fee with certain intermediaries.

2004 -+ 2003
Management fee ... .. .. $109,412  $58,976
Incentive fee ... .. oo e 194,524 29,890

Note 4—LINE OF CREDIT

The Company renewed a line of credit loan with a maximum principal amount of $325,000 on August 28,
2004 at an annual percentage interest rate of prime plus 0.50%. The balance due on the line of credit loan at
December 31, 2004 was zero ($0). The Company has pledged $390,000 of its fixed income mutual fund
investments to secure this line. The line of credit loan is due to mature on August 28, 2005, at which time
management intends to renew the line.

Note 5—CAPITAL STOCK
Common Stock

The Company has only one class of securities, Common Stock.

Treasury Stock

On July 17, 2000, the Company announced a program to repurchase up to 400,000 shares of its Common
Stock through open market purchases and privately negotiated transactions. From July 17, 2000 through July 25,
2002 the Company purchased a total of 352,897 shares of its Common Stock at an average price of $5.69 per
share. During the year ending December 31, 2004, the Company has issued 89,061 shares of Treasury Stock
(15,000 shares to employees in the form a restricted stock grant, 60,000 in the form of a private placement, and
14,061 to fulfill the Company’s match under the Company’s 401k Plan). The Company’s total Treasury Stock
share balance as of December 31, 2004 is 214,912,
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Authorization of Preferred Stock

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of 1,000,000 shares of “blank check”
preferred stock with such designations, rights and preferences, as may be determined from time to time by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is empowered, without shareholder approval, to issue
preference stock with dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting, or other rights, which could adversely affect the
voting or other rights of the holders of the Common Stock. There were no shares of preferred stock issued or
outstanding at December 31, 2004 or 2003.

Note 6—INCOME TAXES

The Company files a consolidated Federal income tax return. It is the policy of the Company to allocate the
consolidated tax provision to subsidiaries as if each subsidiary’s tax liability or benefit were determined on a
separate company basis. As part of the consolidated group, subsidiaries transfer to the Company their current
Federal tax liability or assets.

2004 2003
Current income tax provision (benefit) .................. ... ... $— $—
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) . ................ ... ... .. ... o —
Provision (benefit) for inCOMe tAXeS .. ..o oo vt e $— $—

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Company’s effective rate is as follows:

w04 2003
Income tax expense expected statutoryrate .............. .. ... 3%  34%
Prior year provision adjustment .. .......... il i i 0 Q
Dividends received deduction ...... ... ... . . .. .. i 0 0
Unrealized gain .. ... e 0 0
Valuation allowance .. ... ... e -34 -34
Income tax expense effectiverate ............ .. ... ... i i, 0% 0%

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003
Deferred tax benefit of NOL carryforward ............... $ 1,914,000 $ 1,819,000
Stock options and warrants .. ....... ... e — —
Unrealized (gains) losses . ...t (125,000) (62,000)
Other liabilities ... ........... ... (3,000) (14,000)
Valuation allowance ........... . (1,786,000) (1,743,000)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ...................... $ — $ —

As of December 31, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries had net operating loss (NOL) carry forwards for
tax purposes of approximately $7,274,000. These NOL’s will expire from 2016 to 2024. Any future changes in
control may limit the availability of NOL carryforwards.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Note 7—OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases office space under an operating lease agreement effective May 1, 2002, which
terminates on May 31, 2006. Total lease expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $120,000. The
future minimum lease payments under the operating lease are as follows:

Year Ended Amount
2005 139,250
2006 63,750

Note 8—MUTUAL FUND ADMINISTRATION

DHCM has an administrative, fund accounting and transfer agency services agreement with Diamond Hill
Funds, an Ohio business trust, under which DHCM performs certain services for each series of the trust. These
services include mutual fund administration, accounting, transfer agency and other related functions. For
performing these services, each series of the trust compensates DHCM a fee at an annual rate of 0.45% times
each series’ average daily net assets. DHCM collected $619,835 and $268,164 for mutual fund administration
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In fulfilling its role under this agreement,
DHCM has engaged several third-party providers, and the cost for their services is paid by DHCM. Mutual fund
administration expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $694,842 and $526,390,
respectively.

Note 9—MUTUAL FUND DISTRIBUTION

On April 30, 2004, DHS discontinued providing mutual fund distribution services as the principal
underwriter for Diamond Hill Funds. As a result, DHS no longer receives distribution-related revenue; however,
DHCM does get reimbursed from the current principal underwriter for certain distribution-related expenses. In
addition, DHCM finances the up-front commissions paid to brokers who sell C Shares of the Diamond Hill
Funds. As financer, DHCM pays the commission to the selling broker at the time of sale. This commission
payment is capitalized and expensed over the trailing 12 months to correspond with the matching revenues
DHCM receives from the principal underwriter to recoup this commission payment. Mutual fund distribution
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $278,262 and $164,732, respectively. Mutual fund
distribution expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $370,202 and $258,421, respectively.

Note 10—BROKER-DEALER

During 2004, the Company transitioned the services of its broker-dealer subsidiary, DHS to third party
broker-dealers and to DHCM. During the fourth quarter of 2004 DHS de-registered with the NASD and SEC as a
broker-dealer and investment adviser. DHS is not expected to have any future operating activity beyond
December 31, 2004. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, broker-dealer activity expenses totaled
$7,814 and $44.,449, respectively. Broker-dealer activity revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 was $10,657 and $26,357, respectively.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Note 11—EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLANS
Equity Compensation Grants

On May 13, 2004 the Company’s shareholders approved terms and conditions of certain equity
compensation grants to three key employees. Under the terms approved a total of 75,000 shares of restricted
stock and restricted stock units were issued to key employees on May 31, 2004. The restricted stock and
restricted stock units are restricted from sale and do not vest until May 31, 2009.

Stock Option Plan

The Company had a Non-Qualified and Incentive Stock Option Plan that authorized the grant of options to
purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The Plan provided that the Board of
Directors, or a committee appointed by the Board, may grant options and otherwise administer the Option Plan.
The exercise price of each incentive stock option or non-qualified stock option must be at least 100% of the fair
market value of the Common Stock at the date of grant, and no such option may be exercisable for more than ten
years after the date of grant. However, the exercise price of each incentive stock option granted to any
shareholder possessing more than 10% of the combined voting power of all classes of capital stock of the
Company on the date of grant must not be less than 110% of the fair market value on that date. This Plan was
adopted in 1993 and expired by its terms in November 2003. Options issued under this Plan are not affected by
the Plan’s expiration.

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 and related Interpretations (APB 25) in
accounting for stock options and warrants issued to employees and Directors. Accordingly, compensation cost is
recognized, when appropriate, based on the intrinsic value of the stock options or warrants.

Had compensation cost for all of the Company’s stock-based awards been determined in accordance with
FAS 123, the Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Net income (loss), asreported . .......otienann e, $(176,500) $ (993,534)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards, net

ofrelated tax effects .......... . oo (103,091) (212,464)
Pro forma netincome .. ... ....oouuvier e $(279,591) $(1,205,998)
Earnings Per Share:
Basic—asreported . . ... .. $ (01D $ (0.68)
Basic—proforma ........ ... ... e $ (0.18) $ {0.83)
Diluted—as reported . .........ccoviiiiiiiie i, $ (0.11) S {0.68)
Diluted—proforma ..............viiiiiieeeiiiinnnn... $ (0.18) $ (0.83)

To make the computations of pro forma results under FAS 123, the fair value of each option grant is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions: no dividend yield for all years and expected lives of ten years. The options and warrants granted
under these plans are not registered and, accordingly, there is no quoted market price.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003 ‘

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option and warrants plans as of December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003 and changes during the periods ending on those dates is presented below:

Options Warrants
Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding Jahuary 1,2003 ... 165,902 $17.124 280,400 $12.897
Granted . ... e e e e 120,000 4.500 — —_
Exercised . ... i e e (1,000) 3.910 —_— —_
Expiredunexercised ............ ... ..o il (11,510) 28.983
Forfeited ... ... e (13,190) 22.008 _ —_
Outstanding December 31,2003 ........................ 260,202 10.581 280,400 12.897
Exercisable December 31,2003 . ........... ..., 116,202 $17.465 280,400 $12.897
Outstanding January 1,2004. ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... 260,202 $10.581 280,400 $12.897
Granted . ... e e e — — — —
BXercised ... e — — —
Expired unexercised ......... ... .o — — — —
Forfeited ... ... i i e i e — —_ — —
Outstanding December 31,2004 ................. e 260,202 10.581 280,400 12.897
Exercisable December 31,2004 ......................... 154,202 $14.517 280,400 $12.897
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options and warrants outstanding at
December 31, 2004:

Options Warrants
Number Qutstanding . . ............ ... .. ... .. 16,202 14,000
Number Exercisable .......... ... . i, 16,202 14,000
Exercise Price ............ i 73.75 73.75
Remaining lifeinyears ........... ... ... o, 3.36 3.36
Number Qutstanding .. .. ......... .. .. ... .. 25,000 21,000
Number Exercisable ......... ... . .. . 25,000 21,000
Exercise Price . ......... i 14.375 14.38
Remaining lifeinyears ............. ... ..o, 0.74 0.74
Number Outstanding . .. ...... ... . . i, 9,000 14,000
Number Exercisable ......... ... ... . iiiiien.n. 9,000 14,000
Exercise Price . ...... ... . . i i 10.625 11.25
Remaining lifeinyears ........... ... ... i, 2.18 5.16
Number Outstanding . .. ...... ... ... .. i, 90,000 16,400
Number Exercisable .. ...... ... .. 64,000 16,400
"Range of exercise prices ........ e 5.25-8.45  22.20-22.50
Weighted average exercise price .................ccooun... 6.26 22.49
Weighted average remaining lifeinyears .................. 4.49 4.24
Number Outstanding . . . ...t 120,000 215,000
Number Exercisable .. ....... ..o 40,000 215,000
Range of exercise prices .......... ... oiiiiiiiiii, 4.50  8.00-10.625
Weighted average eXercise price ..............c....uvvue... 4.50 8.17
Weighted average remaining lifeinyears .................. 8.43 5.01

Note 12—REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

DHCM is a registered investment adviser and is subject to regulation by the SEC pursuant to the Investment
Advisors Act of 1940.

Note 13—SEGMENT INFORMATION
Types of services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues

The Company has three reportable segments: Investment Advisory Services, Broker-Dealer Services and
Corporate Portfolio. The Investment Advisory Services segment provides investment advisory services to the
Diamond Hill Funds, a series of open-end mutual funds, Diamond Hill Investment Partners, L.P., a private
investment partnership, and offers investment advisory services to institutional and individual investors. During
2004 the Broker-Dealer Services segment was transitioned to third party broker-dealers. Prior to the transition,
the Broker-Dealer Services segment offered brokerage services to institutional and individual investors and
underwriting services to the Diamond Hill Funds. The Corporate Portfolio segment is represented by revenue
generating investments unrelated to the other operating segments.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Measurement of segment profit or loss and segment assets

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance based on profit or loss from operations before income
taxes. The Company focuses its attention on providing services to external customers.

Factors management used to identify the enterprises’ reportable segments

The Company’s reportable segments are primarily defined by legal entities. that specialize in different
financial products and services. Investment Advisory Services are provided by DHCM. Broker-Dealer Services
were provided primarily by DHS. The Company manages the Corporate Portfolio segment. These segments are
managed separately because each entity operates in a different regulatory environment.

Financial information for each reportable segment is shown below. The Company does not operate, or hold
assets, in any foreign country. The Company has one client, the Diamond Hill Focus Long-Short Fund, which
represented 13% of its revenue for 2004.

Financial information for the year ended December 31, 2004

Investment

Advisory Broker-Dealer  Corporate
Services Services Portfolio Combined

Investment Management Fees:

Mutwalfunds ..ot $1,020,238 $ — $ —  $1,020,238

Managed accounts ................ T 1,160,674 — — 1,160,674

Private investment partnership ................. 287,578 —_ —_ 287,578
Total investment management fees .. ................ 2,468,490 — — 2,468,490
Operating Expenses: ‘

Salaries, benefits & payroll taxes ............... 2,201,797 75,000 — 2,276,797

Legalandaudit ............. ... iivniinon.. 8,455 — 76,091 84,546

General and administrative .................... 402,259 13,702 — 415,961

Salesandmarketing . . ........................ 190,869 — — 190,869

Total operating expenses .. ................ 2,803,380 88,702 76,091 2,968,173

Mutual fund administration .. .............. ... ..... ©(75,007) — = (75,007)
Mutual fund distribution ......... ... ... ... ... . ... (91,940) —_ (91,940)
Broker-dealer activity .......... ... ... . — 2,843 — - 2,843
Net Operating Loss ............. J (501,837) (85,859) (76,091)  (663,787)
Investment return, net of interest expense . ............ — — 487,287 487,287
LossBefore Taxes . ...t (501,837) (85,859) 411,196 (176,500)
Income Tax Provision (Credit) ..................... — — — —
NetLoss . oo e $ (501,837) $(85,859) $ 411,196 $ (176,500}
Total Assets ................ e $ 269250 $ — $3,698,309 $3,967,559
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Financial information for the year ended December 31, 2003

Investment
Advisory Broker-Dealer Corporate
Services Services Portfolio Combined

Investment Management Fees:

Mutual funds ..o, $ 465549 § — $ — $ 465,549

Managed accounts ............c....iiiiaan.an 606,169 — — 606,169

Private investment partnership . ................ 88,866 — — 88,866
Total investment management fees ................. 1,160,584 — — 1,160,584
Operating Expenses:

Salaries, benefits & payrolltaxes............... 1,303,892 73,227 143,031 1,520,150

Legalandaudit............................. 2,300 1,664 66,517 70,481

General and administrative ................... 300,773 38,794 104,235 443,802

Salesand marketing ......................... 123,746 25,803 150,368

Total operating expenses ................. 1,730,711 114,504 339,586 2,184,801

Mutual fund administration ....................... (258,226) — — (258,226)
Mutual fund distribution .............. ... ... ..... — (93,689) —_— (93,689)
Broker-dealer activity .............. .. . 0.0 — (18,062) — (18,062)
Net Operating Loss ............cciiiiiiinna.. (828,353)  (226,255) (339,586) (1,394,194)
Investment return, net of interest expense ............ —_ — 400,660 (400,660)
LossBefore Taxes ...........c. i inan. (828,353)  (226,255) 61,074 (993,534)
Income Tax Provision (Credit) .................... — — — —
NetLoSs . oot $ (828,353) $(226,255) $§ 61,074 $ (993,534)
Total ASSEtS ...ttt e $ 198,734 $264,497 $2,850,417 $ 3,313,648
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 8: Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants or Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None

ITEM 8A: Controls and Procedures

Management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, has conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e) as
of the end of the period covered by this annual report. Based on the evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this annual report, the
disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms. There have been no significant changes in internal controls, or in factors that
could significantly affect internal controls, subsequent to the date the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief

- Financial Officer completed their evaluation.

ITEM 8B: Other Information

None

PART 111

ITEM 9: Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons; Compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act

Information regarding this Item 9 is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2005 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of
the Exchange Act, under the Captions: “Directors and Executive Officers”, “Compliance with Section 16(a) of
the Exchange Act”, “Audit Committee” and “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics”.

ITEM 10: Executive Compensation

Information regarding this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2005 annual
meeting of shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of
the Exchange Act, under the Caption: “Executive Compensation”. o

ITEM 11: Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information regarding this Item 11 is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2005 annual
meeting of shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of
the Exchange Act, under the Captions: “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™” and
“Executive Compensation”.

ITEM 12: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding this Item 12 is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2005 annual
meeting of shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of
the Exchange Act, under the Caption: “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 13: Exhibits
(a) Index of Exhibits

*3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company.
*3.2  Code of Regulations of the Company.

**10.1 Diamond Hill Investment Group (fka Heartland) Incentive Compensation Plan.
*%%10.2 1993 Non-Qualified and Incentive Stock Option Plan.

*#%%10,3 Synovus Securities, Inc., Sub-Advisory Agreement with the Diamond Hill Capital

Management, Inc. dated January 30, 2001,

**10.4 Employment Agreement between the Company and Roderick H. Dillon, Jr. dated May 11,

2000.

**10.5 Employment Agreement between the Company and James F. Laird dated October 24, 2001.

*¥*Ex%10.6 Form of Subscription Agreement for Common Shares of Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc.

executed by subscribers as part of the private placement on July 22, 2003.

FaRFEAX10.7 Form of Subscription Agreement for Common Shares of Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc.

executed by subscribers as part of the private placement on July 21, 2004.

kool U N | Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Rk

dkok

sestkokg

FAkKE KK

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.

23.0  Consent of Independent Auditors.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).
31.2. Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b)
or Rule 15(d)-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18
U.S.C. 1350).

Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on
May 8, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-KSB
filed on March 28, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Proxy Statement
filed on July 21, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-KSB
filed on March 1, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-QSB
filed on November 14, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-QSB
filed ont November 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

*dkkirk Piled with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Company’s Proxy Statement

filed on April 9, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 14: Principal Accountant Fees and Services
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the following fees apply:

- Year Ended  Year Ended
12/31/2004 12/31/2003

Audit (1) o e $27,700 $30,200
Auditrelated . ... e e —_ —
AR () ot e 5,500 5,500
Other . . o e — —

Total J...oooovii e A, L. $33,200 $35,700

(1) The audit fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were for professional services
rendered for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements, reviews of the Company’s quarterly
financial statements, issuance of consents, and assistance with review of other documents filed with the
SEC. :

(2) The tax fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were for services related to tax
compliance, tax advice and tax planning including the preparation of tax returns and assistance with tax
audits. - T

It is the policy of the Audit Committee to pre-approve the services of the independent accountants and
present that approval to the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, 100% of the
independent accountants’ fees were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.
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DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 14: Principal Accountant Fees and Services
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the following fees apply:
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[ 1131 R O —_ —
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(1) The audit fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were for professional services
rendered for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements, reviews of the Company’s quarterly
financial statements, issuance of consents, and assistance with review of other documents filed with the
SEC.

(2) The tax fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were for services related to tax
compliance, tax advice and tax planning including the preparation of tax returns and assistance with tax

audits.

It is the policy of the Audit Committee to pre-approve the services of the independent accountants and
present that approval to the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, 100% of the
independent accountants’ fees were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized:

DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC.

By: /S/ R.H.Dillon
R. H. Dillon, President and Director

March 30, 2005

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature 1itl_g P_gt_e

{8/ R.H, Dillon President and Director March 30, 2005
R. H. Dillon

[S{ James F. Laird Chief Financial Officer March 30, 2005

James F. Laird

S/ _David P. Lauer ' Director March 30, 2005
David P. Lauer

{S{ _James G, Mathias Director March 30, 2005
James G. Mathias

{S/ _David R, Meuse Director March 30, 2005
David R. Meuse

{S/__Diane D. Reynolds Director March 30, 20035
Diane D. Reynolds
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

The 2005 annual meeting on May 12th coincides with the date five years ago when we embarked on the
construction of what is now known as Diamond Hill Investment Group. At the outset, our mission was two-fold,
which was to:

*  build an investment management firm that ranks among the best, and

* rationalize the existing businesses.

In the first five years of this journey, we have built a solid foundation to achieve our mission. Importantly,
this has been accomplished in a manner such that the shareholders intrinsic value per share has risen at least two-
fold, during a difficult period for U.S. equity markets generally and the investment management industry in
particular.

The best investment management firms are characterized by:
* excellent investment returns for their clients over a long period of time,
* dedication to a sound, proven investment philosophy, and

» personnel who exhibit integrity, intelligence, and energy.

Ten years may be the minimum definition of “a long period of time” and therefore we are near the halfway
point in this quest (in terms of calendar years, we have completed four). It is gratifying that in each year we have
had solid investment returns for all of our strategies, and the cumulative period ranking is especially good. For
instance, while the S&P 500 had a negative return of -13% during the period July 1, 2000 through March 26,
2005, our first fund, the Diamond Hill Focus Long-Short Fund, had a positive return of 49%.

However, we cannot rest on our laurels. Many clients are new to us, and therefore they have not benefited
from our past successes. Our goal is for each of our investment strategies to be ranked in the top quartile for the
next five-year period ending December 31, 2009 (and to continue doing so in subsequent rolling five-year
periods).

As a corporation, another characteristic to be among the “best in class” would be growth in shareholder
intrinsic value, with profitability an important guidepost. A survey of publicly owned firms might suggest “scale”
is achieved at a 30% operating profit margin. As we approach the operating cash flow breakeven mark, we still
need to grow our business substantially to reach that level. [In last year’s letter I suggested assets under
management (‘AUM”) in a range of $2 to $4 billion necessary to achieve scale.] As of March 25th AUM were
about $675 million, more than twice the level of a year ago.

Our financial goals during the next five years include:
* annual improvement in operating profit margins, reaching 30% by 2009,
« full utilization of our tax loss carry-forwards, and

* recouping our subsidy of our mutual funds’ administration expenses.

Achieving these goals would result in strong growth in our company’s intrinsic value per share. Most
importantly, fulfilling our fiduciary responsibility through competitive investment returns and service will always
be our primary goal as an investment firm.

As Benjamin Graham taught Warren Buffett (among others, including us who read Graham’s books and
Buffett’s shareholder letters), intrinsic value is the “true value” of the shareholder equity of a company. For an
ongoing concern, the intrinsic value is unknowable by definition, calculated as the present value of some measure
of future cash flows. All we humans can do is estimate the future, and thus estimate the intrinsic value. The
accounting concept of book value, or the current trading price for a share of common stock may or may not
approximate an independent estimate of intrinsic value.




Our firm’s investment management philosophy is to have an estimate of intrinsic value before purchasing
shares for our client portfolios, and then to constantly compare the stock price with that estimate of intrinsic
value. We look to sell those stocks whose market prices exceed our estimate, believing that holding stocks that
are trading above our estimate departs the investing realm, and enters the world of speculation.

How does the above discussion of intrinsic value apply to shareholders of Diamond Hill? Hindsight being
20/20, when 1 estimate the intrinsic value per share for our company in May 2000, I conclude that the value was
$5-6 per share. This approximated tangible book value, and was lower than the $8-9 trading range on May 12,
2000.

Estimating our current intrinsic value might begin with forecasts of our EPS for each of the next five years.
A wide range of possibilities exist, dependant upon variables such as:

e our clients’ investment results,

» the success of our business development efforts, and

» general expense controls.

Our stock’s recent trading range may imply achieving scale in the next five years. Stated differently, not
reaching scale until 2014 implies a lower intrinsic value per share as compared with the intrinsic value assuming

achieving scale in 2009. That being said, it is most important that we focus on growing the intrinsic value of the
company, believing that over time the stock price will ultimately reflect that value.

I conclude by thanking the Board of Directors and my colleagues at the company for the opportunity to have
served as your President and Chief Executive Officer these past five years. I believe we are poised for an exciting
and profitable future.

Sincerely,

%

R.H. Dillon
President and Chief Executive Officer
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April 6, 2005

Dear Shareholders:

We cordially invite you to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Diamond Hill Investment Group,
Inc. (the “Company”), to be held at the Company’s office located at 375 North Front Street, Suite 300,
Columbus, Ohio 43215, on Thursday, May 12, 2005, at 3:00 p.m.

The attached Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement describe the formal business to be transacted
at the meeting. During the meeting, we will also report on the -operations of the Company. Directors and officers
of the Company will be present to respond to any appropriate questions you may have. On behalf of the Board
of Directors, we urge you to sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card as soon as possible even if you
currently plan to attend the Annual Meeting. This will not prevent you from voting in person but will assure
that your vote is counted if you are unable to attend the meeting. Your vote is important, regardless of the
number of shares you own.

Sincerely,

%

R. H. Dillon
President & CEO




NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 12, 2005

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc.
(the “Company”), will be held at the Company’s office located at 375 North Front Street, Suite 300, Columbus,
‘Ohio 432195, on Thursday, May 12, 2005, at 3:00 p.m: to consider and act upon the following matters:

1. To elect five directors to serve on the Board of Directors;
2. To approve and adopt the Company’s 2005 Employee and Director Equity Incentive Plan; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Any action may be taken on any one of the foregoing proposals at the Annual Meeting or on any date or
dates to which, by original or later adjournment, the Annual Meeting may be adjourned. Pursuant to the
Company’s bylaws, the Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 21, 2005, as the record date
for determination of the shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting and any adjournments thereof. A
complete list of shareholders of the Company entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for
examination for purposes germane to the Annual Meeting by any shareholder, during the ten days prior to the
Annual Meeting, at the Company’s office. You are requested to complete and sign the enclosed form of proxy
which is solicited by the Board of Directors of the Company and to mail it promptly in the enclosed envelope, or
you may vote by phone by using the control number identified on your proxy or electronically by Internet in
accordance with the instructions on your proxy. The proxy will not be used if you attend, and vote at, the Annual
Meeting in person or if you revoke the proxy prior to the Annual Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

oA e

James F. Laird
Secretary

Columbus, Ohio
April 6, 2005

THE PROMPT RETURN OF YOUR PROXY WILL SAVE THE COMPANY THE EXPENSE OF
FURTHER REQUESTS FOR PROXIES IN ORDER TO OBTAIN A QUORUM. AN ADDRESSED
ENVELOPE IS ENCLOSED FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE. NO POSTAGE IS REQUIRED IF THE
ENVELOPE IS MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES.




PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC.
TO BE HELD ON MAY 12, 2005

This Proxy Statement is furnished to the shareholders of Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc., an Ohio
corporation (the “Company™), in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of the
Company for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company (the “Annual Meeting”) to be held on
May 12, 2005, and any adjournment thereof. A copy of the Notice of Annual Meeting accompanies this Proxy
Statement. It is anticipated that the mailing of the Proxy Statement will commence on April 6, 2005. Only
shareholders of record at the close of business on March 21, 2005, the record date for the Annual Meeting (the
“Record Date”), will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

The purposes of this Annual Meeting are (1)-to elect five directors to serve on the Board of Directors for
one-year terms; (2) to approve and adopt the Company’s 2005 Employee and Director Equity Incentive Plan (the
*2005 Plan”); and (3) to transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any
adjournment thereof. The Company is not currently aware of any other matters that will come before the Annual
Meeting.

The shareholder’s form of proxy, when duly executed and received by the Company, will be voted by the
proxies at the Annual Meeting as directed. A proxy returned without direction about business to be transacted at
the Annual Meeting will, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, be voted (1) FOR the
election of R. H. Dillon, David P. Lauer, Dr. James G. Mathias, David R. Meuse and Diane D. Reynolds as
directors of the Company and (2) FOR approval and adoption of the 2005 Plan. The proxies will use their best
judgment regarding other matters that properly come before the Annual Meeting.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT VOTING AND VOTING PROCEDURES

When and where will the Annual Meeting take place?

The Annual Meeting will be held at the Company’s office located at 375 North Front Street, Suite 300
Columbus, Ohio 43213, on Thursday, May 12, 2005, at 3:00 p.m.

What do I need to do now?

After carefully reading this Proxy Statement, indicate on your enclosed proxy card how you want your
shares to be voted. Then sign and mail the proxy promptly in the enclosed envelope, or vote by phone by
using the control number identified on your proxy or electronically by Internet in accordance with the
instructions on your proxy. The proxy will not be used if you attend, and vote at, the Annual Meeting in
person or if you revoke the proxy prior to the Annual Meeting.

What is the difference between holding shares as a shareholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

Many shareholders are beneficial owners in that they hold their shares through a stockbroker, bank or other
nominee rather than directly in their own name. As summarized below, there are some distinctions between
shares held of record and those owned beneficially.

Shareholder of Record. If your shares are registered directly in your name with the Company’s transfer
agent, you are considered, with respect to those shares, the shareholder of record and this Proxy Statement is
being sent directly to you by the Company. As a shareholder of record, you have the right to grant your
proxy directly to the Company or to vote in person at the Annual Meeting. The Company has enclosed a
proxy card for your use. : :

Beneficial Owner. If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you
are considered the beneficial owner of the shares held in street name and this Proxy Statement is being
forwarded to you by your broker or other nominee, who is considered, with respect to those shares, the
shareholder of record. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker or other nominee on
how to vote. Your broker or other nominee has enclosed a voting instruction card for your use. If you are a
shareholder whose shares are not registered in your own name, you will need additional documentation from
your broker or other nominee to attend the Annual Meeting and to vote your shares at the Annual Meeting,

If my shares are held in “street name” by my broker, will my broker vote my shares for me?

Your broker will vote your shares only if you provide your broker with instructions on how to vote. You
should follow the directions provided to you by your broker regarding how to instruct your broker to vote
your shares.

May I change my vote after I have mailed my signed proxy card?

Yes. You can change your vote at any time before your proxy is votea at the Annuél Meeting.rlf you are the '
record holder of the shares, you can do this in three ways:

* send the Company a written statement that you would like to revoke your proxy, which must be received
by the Company prior to the date of the Annual Meeting;

» send the Secretary of the Company a new signed and later-dated proxy card, which must be received by
the Company prior to the date of the Annual Meeting; or

» attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person (your attendance alone will not revoke your proxy).

For shares held beneficially by you, but not as record holder, you may change your vote by submitting new
voting instructions to your broker or nominee.




Q

How can I vote my shares in person at the Annual Meeting?

A: Shares held directly in your name as the shareholder of record may be voted in person at the Annual
Meeting. If you choose to attend, please bring the enclosed proxy card or proof of identification.

LS4

How will my shares be voted if I return a blank proxy card?

A: If you are the record holder of the shares and you sign and send in your proxy and do not indicate how you
want to vote, your proxy will be counted as a vote in favor of election of the director nominees and in favor
of adoption of the 2005 Plan.

Q: Who can answer my questions about how I can submit my proxy?

A: If you have more questions about how to submit your proxy, please call James F. Laird, the Company’s
Secretary, at (614) 255-3353.

THE ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting will be held at the Company’s office located at 375 North Front Street, Suite 300,
Columbus, Ohio 43215, on Thursday, May 12, 2005, at 3:00 p.m. The purposes of this Annual Meeting are (1) to
elect five directors to serve on the Board of Directors for one-year terms; (2) to approve and adopt the
Company’s 2005 Employee and Director Equity Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan™); and (3) to transact such other
business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof. The Company is not
currently aware of any other matters that will come before the Annual Meeting.

PROCEDURAL MATTERS

Record Date

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on March 21, 2005, the record date for the Annual
Meeting (the “Record Date”), will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, there were
1,625,095 shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. A
complete list of shareholders of the Company entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for
examination for purposes germane to the Annual Meeting by any shareholder, during the two days prior to the
Annual Meeting.

Proxy

Your proxy, when duly executed and received by the Company, will be voted by the proxies at the Annual
Meeting as you direct. A proxy returned without direction about business to be transacted at the Annual Meeting
will, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, be voted (1) FOR the election of R. H. Dillon,
David P. Lauer, Dr. James G. Mathias, David R. Meuse and Diane D. Reynolds as directors of the Company and
(2) FOR approval and adoption of the 2005 Plan. The proxies will use their best judgment regarding other
matters that properly come before the Annual Meeting.

Revocability of Proxy

The execution and delivery of the enclosed form of proxy by a shareholder will not affect a shareholder’s
right to attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person. Any record shareholder giving a proxy may revoke it at
any time before it is exercised by delivering a later-dated proxy or a written notice of revocation to the Secretary
of the Company at 375 North Front Street, Suite 300 Columbus, Ohio 43215 or by giving notice of revocation at
the Annual Meeting. When a record shareholder votes at the Annual Meeting, his or her vote will revoke any
proxy previously granted by the shareholder. For shares held beneficially by you, but not as record holder, you
may change your vote by submitting new voting instructions to your broker or nominee.
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Quorum

The Company can conduct business at the Annual Meeting only if holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares entitled to vote are present, either in person or by proxy. Abstentions will be counted in determining
whether a quorum has been reached. In the event that a quorum is not present at the time the Annual Meeting is
convened, a majority in interest of the holders of the shares represented in person or by proxy may adjourn the
Annual Meeting, without notice other than announcement at the Annual Meeting, until holders of the amount of
shares requisite to constitute a quorum shall attend. At any such adjourned Annual Meeting at which a quorum
shall be present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the Annual Meeting as
originally called.

Voting

Each share may cast one vote on each separate matter of business properly brought before the Annual
Meeting. A plurality of the votes duly cast is required for the election of directors. The affirmative vote of a
majority of the votes duly cast is required to approve and adopt the 2005 Plan.

Shareholder voting in the election of directors may cumulate such shareholder’s votes and give one
candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to
which the shareholder’s shares are entitled, or distribute such shareholder’s votes on the same principle among as
many candidates as the shareholder may select. However, no shareholder shall be entitled to cumulate votes
unless the candidate’s name has been placed in nomination prior to the voting and the shareholder, or any other
shareholder, has given notice to the Company at least forty-eight hours prior to the Annual Meeting of the
intention to cumulate votes. On all other matters, each share has one vote.

Abstentions; Broker Non-Votes; Effect

Boxes and a designated space are provided on the form of proxy for shareholders to mark if they wish to
withhold authority to vote for one or more nominees for election as a director of the Company and/or if they wish
to abstain from voting on the proposal regarding the equity compensation plan.

Broker-dealers who hold their customers’ shares in street name may, under the applicable rules of the self-
regulatory organization of which the broker-dealers are members, sign and submit proxies for such shares and
may vote shares on routine matters, which, under such rules, typically inciude the election of directors. However,
broker-dealers may not vote shares on other matters, such as the approval of the 2005 Plan, which would be
considered non-routine, without specific instructions from the customer who owns the shares. Therefore, if your
shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee and if your broker-dealer does not
receive instructions on how to vote your shares, your shares may not be voted and a broker “non-vote” occurs.

A plurality of the votes duly cast is required for the election of directors. Neither abstentions nor broker
non-votes will have any impact on the election of directors. However, the affirmative vote of a majority of the
votes duly cast is required to approve and adopt the 2005 Plan. Therefore, abstentions are deemed to be “votes
cast” and will have the effect of votes against the proposal to approve the 2005 Plan; however, broker non-votes
are not deemed to be “votes cast” and are not included in the tabulation of the voting results on these proposals.

The Board of Directors encourages shareholders to instruct their broker-dealers as to- how to vote their
shares.

Solicitation; Expense

The expenses of the solicitation of the proxies for the Annual Meeting, including the cost of preparing,
assembling and mailing the Notice, form of proxy, Proxy Statement and return envelopes, the handling and
tabulation of proxies received, and charges of brokerage houses and other institutions, nominees or fiduciaries for




forwarding such documents to beneficial owners, will be paid by the Company. In addition to the mailing of the
proxy material, solicitation may be made in person or by telephone by officers or directors of the Company (none
of whom have been employed to specifically solicit shareholders).

No person is authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this Proxy
Statement, and if given or made, such information or representation should not be relied upon as having been
authorized. This Proxy Statement does not constitute the solicitation of a proxy in any jurisdiction from any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such proxy solicitation in such jurisdiction. The delivery of this Proxy
Statement shall not, under any circumstances, imply that there has not been any change in the information set
forth herein since the date of this Proxy Statement.

Requests for Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-KSB

~ The Company’s annual report on Form 10-KSB, including the financial statements, for the year ended
December 31, 2004, is enclosed herewith but is not a part of the proxy solicitation material. The Company is
delivering a single copy of this Proxy Statement and the annual report on Form 10-KSB to multiple shareholders
sharing an address unless the Company has received instructions from one or more of the shareholders to the
contrary. The Company will promptly deliver a separate copy of the Proxy Statement or annual report on Form
10-KSB, at no charge, upon receipt of a written or oral request by a record shareholder at a shared address to
which a single copy of the documents was delivered. Written or oral requests for a separate copy of the
documents, or to provide instructions for delivery of documents in the future, may be directed to James F. Laird,
Secretary of the Company, at 375 North Front Street, Suite 300 Columbus, Ohio 43215 or (614) 255-3353.




PROPOSAL 1—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company has nominated R. H. Dillon, David P. Lauer, Dr. James G. Mathias,
David R. Meuse and Diane D. Reynolds for election to the Board of Directors of the Company to hold office for
one-year terms in 2005 expiring at the next annual meeting of shareholders. Each such nominee is a member of
the existing Board of Directors. ‘

The Board of Directors formed a special Corporate Governance Committee on August 30, 2001 to examine
certain corporate governance issues and to report to the full board on November 1, 2001. The Corporate
Governance Committee, among other things, recommended that the Company’s board be reduced to as few as six
directors and that all but one director should be independent, as defined by the Nasdaq rules. Based upon that
recommendation, the Board, at its February 10, 2005 meeting, nominated five existing board members, all but
one being independent, for election by shareholders at the Annual Meeting. The nominations were based upon
consideration of factors that the committee had suggested should be important, including independence,
competence in general business matters, experience and competence in financial, operational and marketing
matters, and willingness to assist the Company in business development efforts.

ﬁ:AV pfdpé)é—al- ta» eieci R 'I:I."Dri-llbn,’ Da;zid I; Lauer, Dr; JamesG Méthias, David R. Meuse and Diane D.
Reynolds will be presented to the shareholders at the Annual Meeting. The five nominees receiving the highest
number of votes will be elected. '

For information regarding the nominees, security ownership, committees of the Board of Directors and
compensation, see the relevant sections beginning on page 10.

THE COMPANY’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU
VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF R. H. DILLON, DAVID P. LAUER, DR. JAMES G. MATHIAS,
DAVID R. MEUSE AND DIANE D. REYNOLDS AS DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY.




PROPOSAL 2—
APPROVAL OF THE COMPANY’S 2005 EMPLOYEE AND DIRECTOR EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

At the Annual Meeting, the Company will submit to shareholders a proposal to adopt the Company’s 2005
Employee and Director Equity Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan”). The Board of Directors has unanimously
approved the adoption of the 2005 Plan, subject to the approval and adoption by the shareholders. Following is a
summary of the principal features of the 2005 Plan. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the 2005 Plan attached to this Proxy Statement in its entirety as Appendix A. If you vote in favor of
adopting the 2005 Plan, your vote will constitute approval of all of the terms of the 2005 Plan.

Purpose

The 2005 Plan is intended to facilitate the Company’s ability to (a) to attract and retain the best available
personnel for positions of substantial responsibility, (b) to provide additional incentive to employees, directors
and consultants, and (c) to promote the success of the Company’s business.

General

The 2005 Plan permits the grant of stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock
appreciation rights (each an “Award” and collectively, “Awards”) to eligible participants of the 2005 Plan.

Administration

The 2005 Plan is to be administered by the Board of Directors or by a committee of directors appointed by
the Board of Directors (the “Administrator”). To the extent the Administrator determines that it is desirable to
qualify Awards granted under the 2005 Plan as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), the 2005 Plan shall be administered by a committee
consisting of two or more “outside directors” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. :

Subject to the specific terms of the 2005 Plan, the Administrator has the authority, at its discretion, to: (i)
determine the officers, directors, employees and consultants who shall be granted Awards, (ii) determine and set
the terms and conditions of all Awards under the 2005 Plan, (iii) construe and interpret the terms of the 2005
Plan and Awards granted pursuant to it, and (iv) make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for
administering the 2005 Plan. The Administrator may amend, suspend or terminate the 2005 Plan at any time and
for any reason, but to the extent required under applicable laws, rules and regulations, material amendments to
the 2005 Plan must be approved by the Company’s shareholders. In no event will the term of the 2005 Plan
extend beyond the tenth anniversary of the effective date of the 2005 Plan.

Eligibility

Under the 2005 Plan, Awards may be granted by the Administrator to employees (including officers of the
Company), directors, or consultants who provide services to the Company. The estimated number of eligible
participants is 23 persons; however, eligibility for participation in the 2005 Plan is at the discretion of the
Administrator. Incentive stock options may be granted only to employees of the Company. Non-employee

directors and consultants are not considered employees of the Company and, therefore, are not eligible to receive
Awards of incentive stock options.

Share Limitations

The total number of shares of the Company’s common stock eligible for Awards granted under the 20035
Plan is 500,000 shares plus an annual increase to be added on the last day of each fiscal year beginning in 2005,
equal to the lesser of (i) 100,000 shares, (ii) 5% of the Company’s total outstanding shares on such date, or (iii) a
lesser amount determined by the Board. If an Award expires, becomes unexercisable or is surrendered without
having been fully exercised or vested, the unvested or cancelled shares underlying the Award will be available
again for Awards granted under the 2005 Plan.




For each form of Award, a participant may not be granted more than 25,000 underlying shares per fiscal
year. However, in connection with a participant’s initial service with the Company, such participant may be
eligible to receive an additional 25,000 shares underlying each form of Award.

Options

The Administrator may grant incentive stock options and/or nonstatutory stock options. The number of
shares covered by each option grant, the exercise price, the term of the option, any waiting periods and other
conditions on exercise will be determined by the Administrator. The Administrator has the discretion to
determine whether an option will be an incentive stock option or a nonstatutory stock option, although to the
extent that the aggregate fair market value of the shares with respect to which incentive stock options are
exercisable for the first time by a participant during any calendar year exceeds $100,000, such options shall be
treated as nonstatutory stock options.

The exercise price for all options granted must be no less than 100% of the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. In the case of an incentive stock option that is granted to an
employee who, at the time of the grant, owns stock representing more than 10% of the voting power of all classes
of stock of the Company, the exercise price must be no less than 110% of the fair market value of the Company s
common stock on the date of grant. :

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The Administrator may also grant Awards consisting of shares of restricted stock or units of restricted stock.
Restricted stock is a share of the Company’s common stock that is subject to a vesting schedule and to the
Company’s right to repurchase such share of restricted stock. A restricted stock unit is a contractual right to
receive restricted stock on a future date. The number of shares of restricted stock or restricted stock units is
determined by the Administrator, as is the vesting schedule for such restricted stock and the lapsing, if any, of the
Company’s right to repurchase such shares of restricted stock.

Each restricted stock unit or share of restricted stock granted pursuant to an Award will be subject to the
Company’s right to repurchase the unvested shares of restricted stock held by a participant. The repurchase right
shall be exercisable upon the voluntary or involuntary termination of the participant’s relationship with the
Company for any reason, including death or disability. The purchase price for shares repurchased pursuant to this
repurchase right shall be the original purchase price paid by the participant for the shares, if any.

A participant holding restricted stock will have the rights equivalent to those of a shareholder and may
exercise full voting powers with respect to the restricted stock during the restriction period. If the Administrator
so determines, each participant holding restricted stock may be credited with regular cash dividends paid with
respect to the underlying shares, if any.

Stock Appreciation Rights

The Administrator may grant stock appreciation rights, pursuant to which a participant is granted the right to
receive shares of the Company’s common stock equal in value to the appreciation in the value of the Company’s
common stock (a “SAR™). While the Administrator has the sole discretion to determine the terms and conditions
of SARs granted under the 2005 Plan, the base value of a SAR may not be less than 100% of the fair market
value of a share of Company common stock on the date of grant of the SAR. The Administrator also has the
discretion to determine the number, terms and conditions of a SAR.

Performance-Based Restrictions

Any Award granted under the 2005 Plan may vest subject to the satisfaction of one or more performance
objectives. The Administrator may set performance objectives, in its sole discretion, which may be based upon
the achievement of Company-wide, divisional, or individual goals, or any other basis determined by the
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Administrator in its discretion. In granting Awards which are intended to qualify under Section 162(m) of the
Code, the Administrator will follow any procedures determined by it from time to time to be necessary or
appropriate to ensure qualification of the Awards under Section 162(m) of the Code.

Consideration

The Administrator determines the acceptable form of consideration for exercising an Award, which may
consist of cash, check, shares acquired directly or indirectly from the Company more than six (6) months on the
date of surrender, consideration received by the Company under a cashless exercise program, reduction in any
Company liability to the participant or any combination of the foregoing. To the extent prohibited by applicable
laws, rules and regulations, payment of the exercise price pursuant to a cashless exercise program will be
unavailable to executive officers of the Company.

Changes in Capitalization

If the Company effects a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination or reclassification of its
shares, or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued shares effected without receipt of consideration
(except for certain conversions of convertible securities), appropriate adjustments will be made, subject to any
required action by the Company’s shareholders, to the number of shares available for issuance under the 2005
Plan, the number of shares that may be issued as Awards, the number of shares covered by each outstanding
Award, the price per share covered by each outstanding Award, the number of shares that may be added annually
to the Plan and the numerical per-person share limits for each type of Award, as appropriate to reflect the stock
dividend or other change.

Merger or Change in Control

In the event of a change in control of the Company, each outstanding Award will be assumed or substituted
for by the successor corporation (or a parent or subsidiary or such successor corporation). If there is no
assumption or substitution of outstanding Awards, a participant will fully vest in and have the right to exercise
his or her Awards as to all shares covered thereby, including shares as to which such Awards would not
otherwise be vested or exercisable. All restrictions on restricted stock or other vesting criteria will lapse, as
determined by the Administrator.

Expiration, Termination and Acceleration

Awards become exercisable and terminate at the times and on the terms established by the Administrator,
including any performance-based restrictions on Awards, but incentive stock options generally may not expire
later than 10 years after the date of grant. Any unvested portion of an Award granted under the 2005 Plan will
terminate automatically upon the termination of the participant’s relationship with the Company. To the extent an
Award is vested as of the date of termination, such participant may exercise the vested portion of the Award
within 3 months following the date of termination or a lesser period as had been specified by the Administrator
(12 months in the case of termination as a result of disability or death).

The Administrator is authorized by the 2005 Plan to determine any vesting acceleration or waiver of
forfeiture restrictions, and any restriction or limitation regarding an Award or the shares of common stock
relating to such Award, based in each case on such factors as the Administrator, in its sole discretion, shall
determine.

Transferability of Awards

Unless otherwise approved by the Administrator, Awards may not be sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated,
transferred or disposed of in any manner other than by will or the laws of descent or distribution. Awards may be
exercised, during the lifetime of the participant, only by the participant.
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Federal Income Tax Aspects

Based upon the Company’s understanding of current federal income tax laws, the federal income tax
consequences of the issuance and exercise of options under the 2005 Plan to the participant and to the Company
are as follows:

No taxable income is reportable when a nonstatutory stock option is granted to a participant. Upon the
exercise of a non-statutory option, the excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise over
the exercise price will be treated as ordinary income to the option holder. The tax basis for the shares purchased
is the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise. Any gain or loss realized upon a later sale of the
shares for an amount in excess of or less than such shares’ tax basis will be taxed as capital gain or loss,
respectively, with the character of the gain or loss (short-term or long-term) depending upon how long the shares
were held since exercise.

No taxable income is reportable when an incentive stock option is granted or exercised (except for purposes
of the alternative minimum tax). To receive favorable tax treatment, shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of
incentive stock options may not be disposed of within 2 years after the date the option was granted, nor within 1
year after the exercise date. If the shares are disposed of before the end of these holding periods, the amount of
value that equals the lesser of the difference between the fair market value on the exercise date and the exercise
price or the difference between the sale price and the exercise price is taxed as ordinary income and the balance,
if any, as short-term or long-term capital gain, depending upon how long the shares were held. If the holding
-- periods are met, all gain or loss realized upon.a later sale of the shares for an amount.in excess of or less than
their tax basis will be taxed as a long-term capital gain or loss, respectively. Undertaking a cashless exercise in
conjunction with the exercise of an incentive stock option results in a disqualifying disposition with respect to
some of the shares and causes the participant to recognize ordinary income for the shares that are sold to effect
the cashless exercise.

The Company generally will be entitled to a tax deduction in connection with an Award under the 2005 Plan
in an amount equal to the ordinary income realized by a participant at the time the participant recognizes such

income (for example, the exercise of* a nonqualified stock option). Special rules limit the deductibility of

compensation paid to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and to each of its four most highly compensated
executive officers. Under Section 162(m) of the Code, the annual compensation paid to any of these specified
executives will be deductible only to the extent that it does not exceed $1,000,000. However, the Company can
preserve the deductibility of certain compensation in excess of $1,000,000 if the conditions of Section 162(m) are
met. These conditions include shareholder approval of the 2005 Plan, setting limits on the number of Awards that
any individual may receive and for Awards other than certain stock options, establishing performance criteria
that must be met before the Award actually will vest or be paid. The 2005 Plan has been designed to permit the
Administrator to grant Awards that qualify as performance-based compensation for purposes of satisfying the
conditions of Section 162(m), thereby permitting the Company to continue to receive a federal income tax
deduction in connection with such Awards.

This summary is not intended to be a complete explanation of all of the federal income tax
consequences of participating in the 2005 Plan. A participant should consult his or her own personal tax
advisor to determine the particular tax consequences of the 2005 Plan, including the application and effect
of any applicable foreign, state and local taxes, and any changes in the tax laws after the date of this Proxy
Statement. :

THE COMPANY’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU
VOTE FOR ADOPTION OF THE 2005 PLAN.




SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The Company’s common stock is the Company’s only class of voting securities. The following table sets

forth, as of March 21, 2005, certain information concerning share ownership and the percentage of voting power
(assuming exercise of all options which are currently exercisable) of (a) all persons known by the Company to
own beneficially five percent or more of the outstanding shares, (b) each director and director nominee, (c) the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company (each, a “Named Executive
Officer”), and (d) all executive officers and directors of the Company, as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the
named persons exercise sole voting and investment power over the shares, which are shown as beneficially
owned by them.

Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership

Common Shares Which
Common  Can Be Acquired Upon

Shares Exercise of Options or
Presently = Warrants Exercisable Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Held® Within 60 Days Total Class@
RHDillon............ .. 0 i i i 17,0294 200,000 217,029 10.7%
655 City Park Avenue ‘
Columbus, Ohio 43206
James F. Laird .. ...... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ... 10,314 40,000 50,314 2.5%
5277 Brynwood Drive
Columbus, Ohio 43220
DavidP. Lauer .........couiiiiinnn. 3,000 0 3,000 *%
5386 Dunniker Park Drive : - -
Dublin, OH 43017
Dr.James G.Mathias ...............coiiuinnnn. 28,945 11,000 39,945 2.0%
7707 Winding Way South
Tipp City, Ohio 45371
David R. Meuse® ... ... ... .. i, 120,000 0 120,000 5.9%

191 W. Nationwide Blvd., Suite 600
Columbus, Ohio 43215

Diane D.Reynolds ........... ... .. .. ... .. .. ..., 3,000 0 3,000 Fk
372 W. Seventh Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43201

All directors and executive officers as a group
(OPEISONS) ¢\ ittt 182,288 251,000 433,288  21.4%

* 3k

(1
@

3)
“4)

Represents ownership of less than 1% of the outstanding common shares of the Company.

Unless otherwise indicated, the beneficial owner has sole voting and dispositive power as to all common
shares reflected in the table. ,

The percent of class is based upon (a) the number of shares of common stock owned by the named person
plus the number of shares as to which the named person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership upon
the exercise of options or warrants exercisable within 60 days after March 21, 2005, divided by (b) the total
number of shares which are issued and outstanding as of March 21, 2005 (1,625,095 shares) plus the total
number of shares which are subject to options or warrants exercisable within 60 days after March 21, 2005.
A portion of the shares are held in the Company’s 401(k) Plan, in which the Trustees of the 401(k) Plan
possess the voting power and restrictions exist with respect to the power to dispose of these shares.

Mr. Meuse owns approximately 65% of Sarsen Investments Inc., LLC which owns 120,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock.
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

The following table contains the name, position and age of each director, executive officer and sigﬁiﬁcant
employee of the Company as of March 21, 2005. The respective background of each director, executive officer
and significant employee is described iminediately following the below table.

Each member of the Board of Directors is subject to election at each annual meeting of shareholders.
Directors are elected to serve until the next annual meeting of the shareholders, until their successors are duly
elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation, removal from office, or death. Each of the executive
officers and significant employee devotes his or her full-time and efforts to the affairs of the Company There are
no family relationships among the directors or executive officers of the Comipany.

Name Position Age
R.H.Dillon ................... President 48
Director
James F. Laird, Jr. .............. Chief Financial Officer 48
Secretary
Treasurer
DavidP.Lauer ................. Director 62
Dr. James G. Mathias ........... Director 52
DavidR.Meuse ................ Director 59
Diane D.Reynolds .. ............ Director 45
Charles S. Bath ...... e ... . Managing Director of Equities 50
Kent K.Rinker ................. Managing Director of Fixed Income 56

Director Nominees

R. H. Dillon was appointed President of the Company in May 2000 and became a director of the Company
in January 2001. He also serves as the Chief Investment Officer of Diamond Hill Capital Management, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. From 1997 through 2000, Mr. Dillon was a Vice President of Loomis,
Sayles & Company, an investment advisory firm. From 1993 through 1997, Mr. Dillon was President and Chief
Investment Officer for Dillon Capital Management, an investment advisory firm acquired by Loomis, Sayles in
1997. Mr. Dillon received his B.S and M.A. degrees in Business Administration with a major in Finance from
The Ohio State University and his M.B.A. degree from the University of Dayton. He received a C.F.A.
designation from the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts in 1982.

David P. Lauer, CPA became a director of the Company in May 2002. Mr. Lauer has been a self-employed
CPA since March 2001. From June 1997 through March 2001, Mr. Lauer served as President and Chief
Operating Officer of Bank One—Columbus. Prior to June 1997, Mr. Lauer was a partner with Deloitte & Touche
for nineteen years. He serves on the board of directors of Airnet Systems, Huntington Bancshares, R. G. Barry,
Wendy’s International and W. W Williams Company.

Dr. James G. Mathias became a director of the Company in 1993. Since 1988, Dr. Mathias has been a
veterinarian practicing in Tipp City, Ohio, where he owns the Tipp City Veterinary Hospital and Wellness
Center. Dr. Mathias attended the University of Texas and completed his education at The Ohio State University,
graduating from the College of Veterinary Medicine in 1978. He was a member of the Honor Society of Phi Zeta,
a Veterinary Honor Society. Dr. Mathias is founder and President of the Dayton North Women’s Center and is a
speaker on Ratite Medicine. He is also on the Veterinary Advisory Board of the lams Company in Dayton, Ohio.

David R. Meuse became a director of the Company in August 2000. Since 1999, Mr. Meuse has been a
Principal for Stonehenge Financial Holdings, Inc. of Columbus, Ohio, where he is responsible for managing its
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affairs. From 1989 to 1999, Mr. Meuse was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Banc One Capital
Holdings Corporation (“BCHC”), the holding company for the investment banking, merchant banking, securities
brokerage, investment advisory and insurance activities of Bank One Corporation, now- a part of J.P. Morgan
Chase. He came to BCHC in 1989 when Bank One Corporation acquired Meuse, Rinker, Chapman, Endres &
Brooks, a regional investment banking firm which Mr. Meuse founded in 1981. Mr. Meuse received his B.A. in
Political Science from John Carroll University and attended Cleveland Marshall College of Law at Cleveland
State University, and the University of Pennsylvania, Wharton School of Finance, Securities Industry. Mr. Meuse
serves on the board of directors of the following: Bluestone Corporation, Bopp-Busch Manufacturing Company,
Central Benefits Mutual Insurance Company, Cornerstone Industrial Group, ORIX USA, The Columbus
Foundation Governing Committee, The Columbus Partnership, Kenyon College, Project GRAD, Stonehenge
Financial Holdings, Inc. and Stonehenge Securities, Inc.

Diane D. Reynolds became a director of the Company in April 2001. Ms. Reynolds is a partner with the law
firm of Taft, Stettinius & Hollister LLP and focuses her practice on mergers and acquisitions, divestitures,
corporate law and finance. Prior to joining Taft, Stettinius & Hollister LLP, Ms. Reynolds was a partner with the
law firm of Benesch, Friedlander, Coplan & Aronoff, LLP and practiced with the firm for three and half years.
Ms. Reynolds merged her firm, Reynolds & Farmer LLP, with Benesch in 2000. Reynolds & Farmer LLP was a
corporate law firm which operated from 1998 to 2000. Prior to entering private legal practice, Ms. Reynolds was
engaged in a diverse corporate practice with two Fortune 500, multinational corporations. She received a B.A. in
economics in 1982 from The Ohio State University, a J.D. in 1985 from Capital University Law School and an
M.B.A. in 1999 from the University of Chicago.

Other Executive Officer

James F. Laird, Jr. was appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company on December
31, 2001. In December 2001, Mr. Laird was elected President of Diamond Hill Funds and on January 1, 2003, he
was appointed as Secretary of the Company. In his capacity with the Company, Mr. Laird oversees all financial
and corporate aspects of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Laird was Senior Vice President of
Villanova Capital, a subsidiary of Nationwide, from 1999-2001. He was Vice President and General Manager
from 1995-1999, and Treasurer form 1987-1994, of Nationwide Advisory Services, Inc. Mr. Laird was also Vice
President of Cranston Securities from 1986-1987 and worked for KPMG Peat Marwick from 1980-1986. Mr.
Laird received his B.S.B.A. in accounting from The Ohio State University. He is also a Certified Public
Accountant and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addition, he holds
several NASD licenses including Series 7, 24, 26, 27, and 63.

Significant Emp]oyées

Charles S. Bath was hired as the Managing Director of Equities for Diamond Hill Capital Management,
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in September 2002. Mr. Bath was a senior portfolio manager
for Gartmore Global Investments, a global investment firm affiliated with Nationwide Insurance, from 1985 to
September 2002, where he managed the Gartmore Total Return Fund. Mr. Bath was first employed by
Nationwide Insurance as an investment professional in 1982. He received his B.S. degree in Accounting from
Miami University, an M.B.A. from The Ohio State University and holds the CFA designation.

Kent K. Rinker was hired as the Managing Director—Fixed Income for Diamond Hill Capital
Management, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in May 2002. From 1999 to 2002, Mr. Rinker
was a consultant and managed private investments. From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Rinker served as the Fiduciary
Representative to the Ohio Attorney General on five Ohio Public Pension Plans with assets totaling $120 billion.
From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Rinker served as Investment Broker for Laidlaw and Co. From 1981-1990, Mr. Rinker
was the founding partner, and served as the Manager of Fixed Income Sales and Trading for Meuse, Rinker,
Chapman, Endres and Brooks. He received his Masters degree in Finance from The Ohio State University, and a
B.A. degree in Economics from Ohio Wesleyan University.
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company entered into an employment agreement in May 2000 with R.H. Dillon, Jr., the President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company which provides for automatic renewal for successive one-year terms
unless earlier terminated by either party. The agreement provided for an annual salary of $150,000 plus a bonus
in the form of cash, stock or other equity position in the discretion of the Board of Directors. On November 11,
2004, the Board of Directors approved an increase in Mr. Dillon’s annual salary to $200,000, effective January 1,
2005, and awarded him a performance bonus of $40,000 in cash. The agreement further provides for such
benefits and other employment privileges as are afforded to other executive employees. If the Company
terminates Mr. Dillon’s employment without cause, he is entitled to a severance payment equal to one year’s
base salary. If the Company terminates Mr. Dillon’s employment without cause within twenty-four months of a
change in control, he is entitled to a lump sum payment equal to his aggregate compensation plus bonus for the
most recently completed fiscal year, a reduction in the duration of his non-competition covenant to six months,
continuation of family medical coverage for one year after the date of termination (subject to Mr. Dillon being
covered by a medical plan of a subsequent employer) and an accelerated vesung of all quahﬁecl stock options or
warrants held by him at the time of termination.

The Company entered into an employment agreement in July 2001 with James F. Laird, Jr., the Chief
Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of the Company. The agreement expires in July 2006 (which unless
otherwise terminated shall automatically renew for a one-year period), and provides for an initial annual salary of
$135,000 with annual adjustments of $9,000 in subsequent years. The agreement also provides for those benefits
as are afforded to other executive employees. If the Company terminates Mr. Laird’s employment without cause,
or if Mr. Laird resigns his employment for specified reasons (including a change in control), he is entitled to a
severance payment equal to one year’s salary, reduced by the amount of any employment compensation earned
by him elsewhere on or after the beginning of the 6th calendar month following the effective date of the
termination or resignation. B ‘

The Company entered into a five year option agreement on May 11, 2000 giving the company the option,
but not the obligation, to purchase the intellectual property known as the Dillon Valuation Model (the “Model”)
from R. H. Dillon, Jr., its President and Chief Executive Officer for $1.6 million. The model is used by the
Company’s portfolio managers in determining estimated intrinsic value of potential or current investments. The
Board has decided not to exercise the option to purchase the Model. The Company has had use of the Model at
no cost since May of 2000 and has paid approximately $40,000 to third-parties during this period for reguiar
maintenance and enhancements. The Company intends to enter into a licensing agreement with Mr. Dillon for
rights to use the Model at no cost for a one-year term. Specific terms of the agreement are bemg negotlated and
will be fully disclosed upon execution of the agreement.

COMMITTEES AND ANNUAL MEETINGS

The Board of Directors held a total of four (4) meetings during the year ended December 31, 2004. The
Board of Difectors has two standing committees: the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. Each
Director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (a) the total number of Board of Directors’ meetings held
during the period for which he or she has been a Director during the last fiscal year, and (b) the total number of
meetings held by all committees of the Board of Directors on which he or she served during the periods that he or
she served during the last fiscal year. The Company does not have a formal policy regarding board members’
attendance at Board meetings or annual meetings of shareholders, although all directors are encouraged to attend
all meetings. Last year, all directors attended all Board meetings and the annual meeting of shareholders.

Director Nomination Process

Given the relatively small size of the Company and its Board of Directors, the Company does not believe
that a standing nominating committee is necessary. All of the Company’s directors participate in the
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consideration of director nominees. Although the Company does not have a formal charter governing the
nomination of directors, it does have an explicit list of criteria that the Board uses to assess potential directors. It
is the Company’s expectation that candidates for the Board of Directors will at the least possess significant skill
and experience in financial services, accounting, marketing, operations, legal matters and in other areas that are
important to the success of the Company.

Director nominees are recommended for the Board’s selection by any of the members of the Board of
Directors, at least a majority of whom are independent under the rules and standards of independence of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (“Nasdaq”). The
Company will consider director candidates recommended by shareholders, and the Company does not alter the
manner in which it evaluates candidates, including the minimum criteria set forth above, based upon the source
of the director nomination. Shareholder recommendations for candidates to the Board of Directors must be
directed in writing to Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc., 375 North Front Street, Suite 300, Columbus, Ohio
43215, Attention: Secretary, and must include the candidate’s name, home and business contact information,
detailed biographical data and qualifications, information regarding any relationships between the candidate and
the Company within the last three years, and evidence of the recommending person’s ownership of the
Company’s common stock.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is authorized, when it is impractical or not in the best interest of the Company to
wait until a Board of Directors meeting for approval, to take any and all action or incur any obligations which
could be taken or incurred by the full Board of Directors. The members of the Executive Committee as of
December 31, 2004, were David R. Meuse (Chairman) and Dr. James G. Mathias. The Executive Committee did
not hold any meetings during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews and approves the scope and results of any outside audit of the Company and
the fees therefore and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors or management concerning auditing and
accounting matters and the selection of independent auditors. The Audit Committee also conducts appropriate
reviews of all related party transactions for potential conflicts of interest situations on an ongoing basis, and all
such transactions are approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are outlined
further in its written charter, a copy of which is attached to the Proxy Statement relating to the Company’s 2004
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Each member of the Audit Committee qualifies as independent under the rules and standards of
independence of the SEC and Nasdaq. The Board has determined that the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
David P. Lauer, qualifies as a “financial expert” as defined by applicable rules of the SEC and as “financially
sophisticated” as defined by applicable Nasdaq rules. The Audit Committee met four (4) times during the year
ended December 31, 2004 and its report relating to the Company’s 2004 fiscal year appears below.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
(December 31, 2004)

Notwithstanding anything fo the contrary set forth in the Company’s previous filings under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), that might incorporate future filings, including this Proxy Statement, in whole or in part, this
report shall not be incorporated by reference into any such filings.

The Audit Committee in 2004 was comprised of three (3) independent directors operating under a written
charter adopted by the Board of Directors. Annually, the Audit Committee recommends to the Board of Directors
the selection of the- Company’s independent auditors. BKR Longanbach, Giusti, LLC served as the Company’s
independent auditors during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Management is responsible for designing and maintaining the Company’s systems of internal controls and
financial reporting processes. The Company’s independent auditors are responsible for performing an audit of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
issuing their report thereon. The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to provide independent, objective oversight
of these processes.

Pursuant to this responsibility, the Audit Committee met with management and the independent auditors
throughout the year. The Audit Committee reviewed the audit plan and scope with the independent auditors, and
discussed the matters required by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit
Committees). The Audit Committee also met with the independent auditors, without management present, to
discuss the results of their audit work, their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls and the
quality of the Company’s financial reporting.

In addition, the Audit Committee has discussed with the independent auditors their independence from the
Company and its management, including the matters in written disclosures and letters from the independent
auditors required by the Independence Standards Board Standard No.1 (Independence Discussions with Audit
Committees).

Management has represented to the Audit Committee that the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2004, were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements with
management and the independent auditors. Based on the Audit Committee’s discussions with management and
the independent auditors and review of the report of the independent auditors to the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board of Directors (and the Board has approved) that the audited- consolidated
financial statements be included in the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed
with the SEC.

Submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company:
David P. Lauer, Chairman

Diane D. Reynolds
Dr. James G. Mathias
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth the compensation paid or payable by the Company during the calendar years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, to the Named Executive Officers. The Company has no other
executive officers.

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Compensation Awards
Annual ~ ™

Compensation Restricted  Securities

Stock Underlying All
Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus($) Awards($) Options(# Other ($)

R HDillon ............. ..., 2004 150,000 40,000 — —_ —
President and Chief Executive Officer 2003 150,000 — — — —
2002 150,000 — — — —
JamesF.Laird ..................... ... ... 2004 156,750 — _ — —
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer 2003 147,750 — — — —

2002 139,125 — — — —

Grants of Options/Stock Appreciation Rights

No grants of options or stock appreciation rights were made during the 2004 fiscal year to the executive
officers of the Company.

2004 Aggregated Option Exercises and Option Values

The following table sets forth information concerning the exercise of stock options by each of Named
Executive Officers during fiscal 2004 and the fiscal year end value of unexercised options.

Number of Securities Underlying Value of Unexercised
Unexercised Options At In The-Money Options At
Fiscal Year End (#) Fiscal Year End ($)10
Shares Acquired Value Realized
Name on Exercise (#) $) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
R.H.Dillon ......... 0 — 200,000 — 1,750,000 —
James F. Laird ....... 0 — _ 40,000 20,000 460,000 230,000

(1) Value is based on the December 31, 2004, closing price of $16.75 per share on the NASDAQ Small Cap
Market.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2004 with respect to the number of
outstanding options granted to employees and directors, as well as the number of shares remaining available for
future issuance under the Company’s existing equity compensation plans, including the 1993 Non-Qualified and
Incentive Stock Option Plan.

(a) (b) {c) .

Number of securities
remaining available for
Weighted-average  future issuance under

Number of securities to  exercise price of equity compensation
be issued upon exercise outstanding plans (excluding
- : of outstanding options,  options, warrants securities reflected
Plan Category warrants and rights and rights ($) in column (a))
- Equity compensation plans app_rov,ed.hy__,sc_curigy, U
holders® .. .. - 340,602 14.00 S :
- Equity compensation plans not approved by ) ' )
security holders® . ...... ... ... ... .. ..., 200,000 8.00 —
Total ..................... e 540,602 14.47 —

(1) Consists of the 1993 Non-Qualified and Incentive Stock Option Plan and Agreements for Restricted Stock
and Restricted Stock Units for an aggregate of 75,000 shares of restricted stock as approved by the
shareholders at the 2004 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.

(2) The 1993 Stock Option Plan expired by its terms in November 2003.

(3) Consists of a warrant to purchase shares of current stock of the Company issued to R. H. Dillon, Jr. on May
11, 2000. The warrant originally granted Mr. Dillon the right to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common stock
at a purchase price of $1.60 per share, which terms were automatically adjusted as a result of the 1 for 5
reverse stock split in September 2001, resulting in Mr. Dillon having the right to purchase 200,000 shares of
common stock at $8.00 per share.

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s 1993 Non- Qualified and Incentive Stock Option Plan expired by its terms in November
2003. The Company is seeking shareholder approval of its 2005 Employee and Director Equ1ty Incentive Plan at
the Annual Meeting.

Director Compensation

Each director who is not an employee of the Company is entitled to receive a fee of $500 plus travel
expenses for each directors’ meeting attended. If approved by the shareholders, directors will be eligible for
participation in the Company’s 2005 Employee and Director Equity Incentive Plan.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires executive officers and directors of the Company, and persons
who beneficially own more than ten percent of the Company’s securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of
ownership on Form 3 and reports of changes in ownership on Form 4 or Form 5. Executive officers, directors and
persons who beneficially own more than ten percent of the Company’s securities are required by SEC regulations
to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely upon a review of Forms 3,
4 and 5 furnished to the Company, management of the Company believes that there were no reports filed late
during the year ended December 31, 2004.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Company has selected BKR Longanbach, Giusti, LLC as the Company’s independent auditors for the
2005 fiscal year and to audit the financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004. A
representative of BKR Longanbach, Giusti, LLC is expected to be present to respond to appropriate questions
and to make such statements as he or she may desire.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the following fees apply:

Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/2004 12/31/2003

AUt e e $27,700 $30,200
Auditrelated . ... . e e e — —_
TaX ) e 5,500 5,500
Other ... o — _
Total . $33,200 $35,700

(1) The audit fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were for professional services
rendered for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements, reviews of the Company’s quarterly
financial statements, issuance of consents, and assistance with review of other documents filed with the
SEC.

(2) The tax fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were for services related to tax
compliance, tax advice and tax planning including the preparation of tax returns and assistance with tax
audits.

It is the policy of the Audit Committee to pre-approve the services of the independent accountants and
present that approval to the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, 100% of the
independent accountants’ fees were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2006 ANNUAL MEETING

Shareholders are entitled to submit proposals on matters appropriate for shareholder action consistent with
SEC regulations and the Company’s bylaws. Should a shareholder wish to have a proposal appear in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for next year’s annual meeting, under the regulations of the SEC, the proposal must
be received by the Secretary of the Company at 375 North Front Street Columbus, Ohio 43215, on or before
December 13, 2005 and must otherwise comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act. If a
shareholder intends to present a proposal at next year’s annual meeting but does not intend to seek the inclusion
of such proposal in the Company’s Proxy Statement, such proposal must be received by the Company prior to
February 27, 2006, or the Company’s management proxies will be entitled to use their discretion voting authority
should such proposal be raised without any discussion of the matter in the Proxy Statement.

COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN SHAREHOLDERS AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a formal process for shareholders to send communications to the board of
directors. Given the relatively small size of the Company and its Board of Directors, the relatively small number
of record holders of the Company’s shares, and the Board’s consistent practice of being open to receiving direct
communications from shareholders, the Company believes that it is not necessary to implement a formal process
for shareholders to send communication to the Board. The Company’s practice is to forward any communication
addressed to the Board of Directors to the members of the Board.
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CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

At a regular Company board of directors meeting on February 5, 2004 the board unanimously approved a
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees. A copy of this Code is
attached to the Proxy Statement relating to the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and as an
exhibit to the Company’s reports filed with the SEC.

OTHER BUSINESS
The Board of Directors knows of no other business to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting. However, if any
other business properly comes before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed
Proxy to vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment. ' '
The prompt completion, execution, and delivery of your Proxy will be appreciated. Whether or not you

expect to attend the Annual Meeting, please complete and sign the Proxy and return it in the enclosed envelope,
or vote your proxy electronically via the Internet or telephonically.
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APPENDIX A

DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP, INC.
2005 EMPLOYEE AND DIRECTOR EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
(Effective )

1. Purposes of the Plan. The purposes of this Plan are (a) to attract and retain the best available personnel

for positions of substantial responsibility, (b) to provide additional incentive to Employees, Directors and
Consultants, and (c) to promote the success of the Company’s business.

The Plan permits the grant of Incentive Stock Options, Nonstatutory Stock Options, Restricted Stock Units,
Restricted Stock, Stock Grants and Stock Appreciation Rights.

2. Definitions. As used herein, the following definitions shall apply:

(a)

(b)

(c)-

(d)

(e
®

(®

“Administrator” means the Board or any of its Committees as shall be administering the Plan, in
accordance with Section 4 of the Plan.

“Applicable Laws” means the requirements relating to the administration of equity-based awards under
U.S. state corporate laws, U.S. federal and state securities laws, the Code, any stock exchange or
quotation system on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted and the applicable laws of any
foreign country or jurisdiction where Awards are, or will be, granted under the Plan.

“Award” means, individually or collectively, a grant under the Plan of Incentivé Stock Options,
Nonstatutory Stock Options, Restricted Stock Units, Restricted Stock, Stock Grants or Stock
Appreciation Rights.

“Award Agreement” means the written or electronic agreement setting forth the terms and provisions
applicable to each Award granted under the Plan. The Award Agreement is subject to the terms and
conditions of the Plan.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Cash Position” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s level of cash and cash
equivalents.

“Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becomes the
“beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of
securities of the Company representing fifty percent (50%) or more of the total voting power
represented by the Company’s then outstanding voting securities;

(ii) The consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the
- ~Company’s assets; —— - - -~ - L N

(iii) A change in the composition of the Board occurring within a two-year period, as a result of which ™
" “fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors; or

(iv) The consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation, other
than a merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company
outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or
by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity or its Parent) at least fifty percent
(50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting securities of the Company or such
surviving entity or its Parent outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation.
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(s)
| ®
(w)

v)

(w)

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Committee” means a committee of Directors appointed by the Board in accordance with Section 4 of
the Plan.

“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company.
“Company” means Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc., an Ohio corporation.

“Consultant” means any natural person, including an advisor, engaged by the Company to render
services to the Company.

“Director” means a member of the Board.
“Disability” means total and permanent disability as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code.

“Earnings Per Share” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s Net
Income, divided by a weighted average number of Common Stock outstanding and dilutive common
equivalent shares deemed outstanding.

“Employee” means any person, including an Officer or Director, employed by the Company or any
Parent or Subsidiary of the Company, with the status of employment determined based upon such
factors as are deemed appropriate by the Administrator in its discretion, subject to any requirements of
the Code or the Applicable Laws. Neither service solely as a Director nor payment of a Director’s fee
by the Company shall be sufficient to constitute “employment” by the Company.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
“Fair Market Value” means, as of any date, the value of Common Stock determined as follows:

(i) If the Common Stock is listed on any established stock exchange or a national market system
including, without limitation, The NASDAQ National Market or The NASDAQ SmallCap Market
of The NASDAQ Stock Market, its Fair Market Value shall be the closing sales price for such
stock (or the closing bid, if no sales were reported) as quoted on such exchange or system on the
day of determination, as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the
Administrator deems reliable;

(i) If the Common Stock is regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer but selling prices are
not reported, the Fair Market Value of a2 Share of Common Stock shall be the mean between the
high bid and low asked prices for the Common Stock on the day of determination, as reported in
The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems reliable; or

(iii) In the absence of an established market for the Common Stock, the Fair Market Value shall be
determined in good faith by the Administrator.

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Company.
“Freestanding SAR” means a Stock Appreciation Right that is granted independent of any Option.

“Incentive Stock Option” means an Option intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Incumbent Directors” means directors who either (i) are Directors as of the effective date of the Plan,
or (ii) are elected, or nominated for election, to the Board with the affirmative votes of at least a
majority of the Incumbent Directors at the time of such election or nomination (but will not include an
individual whose election or nomination is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest
relating to the election of directors to the Company).

“Individual Objectives” means as to a Participant for any Performance Period, the objective and
measurable goals set by a process and approved by the Administrator (in its discretion).
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(x) “Net Income” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s income after
taxes.

(y) “Nonstatutory Stock Option” means an Option not intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option.

(z) “Officer” means a person who is an officer of the Company within the meaning of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulatrons promulgated thereunder.

(aa) “Operating Cash Flow” means as to any Performance Period, the Company sora busmess unit’s sum
of Net Income plus depreciation and amortization less capital expenditures plus changes in working
capital comprised of accounts receivable, inventories, other current assets, trade accounts payable,
accrued expenses, product warranty, advance payments from customers and long-term accrued
expenses.

(bb) “Operating Income” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s income
from operations but excluding any unusual items.

(cc) “Option” means an Award of a right to purchase Common Stock or Restricted Stock granted pursuant
to Section 6 of the Plan. :

(dd) “Option Exchange Program” means a program whereby outstanding Options are surrendered in
exchange for Options with a lower exercise price.

(ee) “Parent” means a “parent corporation,” whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in Section 424(e)
of the Code.

(ff) “Participant” means the holder of an outstanding Award.

(gg) “Performance Goals” means the goal(s) (or combined goal(s)) determined by the Administrator (in its
discretion) to be applicable to a Participant with respect to an Award. As determined by the
Administrator, the Performance Goals applicable to an Award may provide for a targeted level or
levels of achievement using one or more of the following measures: (i) Cash Position, (ii) Earnings Per
Share, (iii) Individual Objectives, (iv) Net Income, (v) Operating Cash Flow, (vi) Operating Income,
(vii) Return on Assets, (viii) Return on Equity, (ix) Return on Sales, (x) Revenue, and (xi) Total
Shareholder Return. The Performance Goals may differ from Participant to Participant and from Award
to Award. Prior to the grant date, the Administrator shall determine whether any significant element(s)
shall be included in or excluded from the calculation of any Performance Goal with respect to any
Participant. For example (but not by way of limitation), the Administrator may determine that the
measures for one or more Performance Goals shall be based’ upon the Company’s pro-forma results
and/or results in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(hh) “Performance Period’ means any Fiscal Year or such other period as determined by the Administrator
in its sole discretion.

(ii) “Plan” means this 2005 Employee and Director Equity Incentive Plan.

(JJ) “Restricted Stock” means Common Stock acquired pursuant to an Award that is subject to a vesting
schedule and the Company’s repurchase option.

(kk) “Restricted Stock Unit” means the right to receive Restricted Stock acquired pursuant to a grant under
Section 7 of the Plan.

(1) “Return on Assets” means as to any Performance Period, the percentage equal to the Company’s or a
business unit’s Operating Income before incentive compensation, divided by average net Company or
business unit, as applicable, assets.

(mm) “Return on Equity” means as to any Performance Period, the percentage equal to the Company s Net
Income divided by average shareholder’s equity. ’
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(nn) “Return on Sales” means as to any Performance Period, the percentage equal to the Company’s or a
business unit’s Operating Income before incentive compensation, divided by the Company’s or the
business unit’s, as applicable, revenue.

(00) “Revenue” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or business unit’s net sales.

(pp) “Rule 16b-3” means Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or any successor to Rule 16b-3, as in effect when
discretion is being exercised with respect to the Plan.

(qq) “Section 16(b)” means Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.
(rr) “Service Provider” means an Employee, Director or Consultant.

(ss) “Share” means a share of Common Stock or Restricted Stock, as the case may be and as adjusted in
accordance with Section 15 of the Plan.

(tt) “Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” means an Award, granted alone or in connection with an Option,
that is designated as a Stock Appreciation Right pursuant to Section 9 of the Plan.

(uu) “Stock Grant” means an Award of Shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to a grant under
Section 8 of the Plan.

(vv) “Subsidiary” means a “subsidiary corporation”, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in
Section 424(f) of the Code. '

(ww) “Tandem SAR” means a Stock Appreciation Right that is granted in connection with a related Option,
the exercise of which will require forfeiture of the right to purchase an equal number of Shares under
the related Option (and when a Share is purchased under the Option, the Stock Appreciation Right will
be canceled to the same extent).

(xx) “Ten Percent Holder” means a person who owns stock representing more than ten percent (10%) of
the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary.

(yy) “Total Shareholder Return” means as to any Performance Period, the total return (change in Share
price plus reinvestment of any dividends) of a Share.

3. Stock Subject to the Plan.

(@) Number of Shares. Subject to the provisions of Section 15 of the Plan, the maximum aggregate number
of Shares that may be granted and/or sold under the Plan is the total of (i) 500,000 Shares and (ii) an
annual increase to be added on the last day of the Fiscal Year beginning in 2005, equal to the lesser of
(A) 100,000 Shares, (B} 5% of the Company’s total outstanding Shares on such date, or (C) a lesser
amount determined by the Board. The Shares may be authorized, but unissued, or reacquired Common
Stock. Shares will not be deemed to have been issued pursuant to the Plan with respect to any portion
of an Award that is settled in cash. Upon payment in Shares pursuant to the exercise of a SAR, the
number of Shares available for issuance under the Plan will be reduced only by the number of Shares
actually issued in such payment. If the exercise price of an Award is paid by tender to the Company of
Shares owned by the Participant, the number of Shares available for issuance under the Plan will be
reduced by the gross number of Shares for which the Award is exercised.

(b) Share Usage. If an Award expires or becomes unexercisable without having been exercised in full, or
is surrendered pursuant to an Option Exchange Program, the unpurchased Shares which were subject
thereto shall become available for future grant or sale under the Plan (unless the Plan has terminated);
provided, however, that Shares that have actually been issued under the Plan shall not be returned to the
Plan and shall not become available for future distribution under the Plan, except that if unvested
Shares of Restricted Stock are repurchased by the Company, such Shares shall become available for
future grant under the Plan.
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4. Administration of the Plan.

(a) Prbcedure.

(1) Section 162(m). To the extent that the Administrator determines it to be desirable to qualify
Awards granted hereunder as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section
162(m) of the Code, the Plan shall be administered by a Committee of two or more “outside
directors” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.

(ii) Rule 16b-3. To the extent desirable to qualify transactions hereundér as exempt under Rule 16b- 3,
the transactions contemplated hereunder shall be structured to sat1sfy the requirements for
exemption under Rule 16b-3.

(iit) Other Administration. Other than as provided above, the Plan shall be administered by (A) the
Board, or (B) a Committee, which committee shall be constituted to satisfy Applicable Laws.

(b) Powers of the Administrator. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, and in the case of a Committee,
subject to the specific duties delegated by the Board to such Committee, the Administrator shall have
the authonty, _at its discretion: :

(i) to determine the Fair Market Value
(i) to select the Service Providers to whom Awards may be granted hereunder;

(iii) to determine the number of Shares of Common Stock to be covered by each Award granted
hereunder; :

(iv) to approve forms of agreement for use under the Plan;

(v) to determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, of any Award
granted hereunder. Such terms and conditions include, but are not limited to, the exercise price,
the time or times when Awards may be exercised (which may-be based on performance criteria),
any vesting acceleration or waiver of forfeiture restrictions, and any restriction or limitation
regarding any Award or the Shares of Common Stock relating thereto, based in each case on such
factors as the Administrator, in its sole discretion, shall determine;

(vi) to reduce the exercise price of any Award to the then current Fair Market Value if the Fair Market
Value of the Common Stock covered by such Award shall have declined since the date the Award
was granted;

{vii) to institute an Option Exchange Program;

(viii) to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and Awards granted pursuant to the Plan;

(ix) to preswcribe,:amend. and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, including rules and:
regulations relating to sub-plans established for the purpose of satisfying applicable foreign laws;

(x) to modify or amend each Award (subject to Section 25 of the Plan), including the discretionary
authority to extend the post-termination exer01sab111ty period of Awards longer than is otherwise
provided for in the Plan;

(xi) to allow Participants ‘to satisfy withholding tax obligations by eiccting to have the Company
- ' withhold from the Shares to. be issued upon exercise of an Award that number of Shares having a
Fair Market Value equal to the minimum amount required to be withheld;

(xii) to authorize any person to execute on behalf of the Company any instrument required to effect the
grant of an Award previously granted by the Administrator; and

(xiii) to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering the Plan.

(c) Effect of Administrator’s Decision. The Administrator’s decisions, determinations and interpretations
shall be final and binding on all Participants and any other holders of Awards.
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5. Eligibility. Awards may be granted to Service Providers; provided, however, that Incentive Stock Options
may be granted only to Employees.

6. Stock Options.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

Share Limitations.

(i) No Service Provider shall be granted, in any Fiscal Year, Options to purchase more than 25,000
Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing limitation, in connection with his or her initial service as a
Service Provider, a Service Provider may be granted Options to purchase up to an additional
25,000 Shares. The foregoing limitations shall be adjusted proportionately in connection with any
change in the Company’s capitalization as described in Section 15.

(ii) Each Option shall be designated in the Award Agreement as either an Incentive Stock Option or a
Nonstatutory Stock Option. Notwithstanding such designation, to the extent that the aggregate
Fair Market Value of the Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for
the first time by the Participant during any calendar year (under all plans of the Company and any
Parent or Subsidiary of the Company) exceeds $100,000, such Options shall be treated as
Nonstatutory Stock Options. For purposes of this Section 6(a)(ii), Incentive Stock Options shall be
taken into account in the order in which they were granted. The Fair Market Value of the Shares
shall be determined as of the time the Option with respect to such Shares is granted.

(ii1) If an Option is cancelled in the same Fiscal Year in which it was granted (other than in connection
with a transaction described in Section 15), the cancelled Option will be counted against the limits
set forth in subsections (i) and (ii) above. For this purpose, if the exercise price of an Option is
reduced, the transaction will be treated as a cancellation of the Option and the grant of a new
Option.

Term of Option. The term of each Option shall be stated in the Award Agreement. In the case of an
Incentive Stock Option, the term shall be ten (10) years from the date of grant or such shorter term as
may be provided in the Award Agreement. Moreover, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted
to a Participant who, at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted, is a Ten Percent Holder, the
term of the Incentive Stock Option shall be five (5) years from the date of grant or such shorter term as
may be provided in the Award Agreement.

Waiting Period and Exercise Dates. At the time an Option is granted, the Administrator shall fix the
period within which the Option may be exercised and shall determine any conditions that must be
satisfied before the Option may be exercised.

Option Exercise Price. The per share exercise price for the Shares to be issued pursuant to exercise of
an Option shall be determined by the Administrator, subject to the following:

(i) Inthe case of an Incentive Stock Option that is:

(a) granted to an Employee who, at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted, is a Ten
Percent Holder, the per Share exercise price shall be no less than one hundred ten percent
(110%) of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant; and

(b) granted to any Employee other than a Ten Percent Holder, the per Share exercise price shall
be no less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date
of grant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Incentive Stock Options may be granted with a per Share exercise price of
less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant pursuant to a
merger or other corporate transaction.

(ii)) In the case of a Nonstatutory Stock Option, including a Nonstatutory Stock Option intended to
qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code,
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the per Share exercise price shall be no less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market
Value per Share on the date of grant.

‘Notiﬁcation Upon Disqualifying Disposition Under Section 421(b) of the Code. Bach Award

Agreement with respect to an Incentive Stock Option shall require the Participant to notify the
Company of any disposition of Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of such Option under the
circumstances described in Section 421(b) of the Code (relating to certain disqualifying dispositions),
within ten (10) days of such disposition

7. Restricted Stock Units/Restricted Stock.

(a)

(b)

©

(d

(e

®

Grant of Restricted Stock Units or Restricted Stock. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, the
Administrator, at any time and from time to time, may grant Restricted Stock Units or Restricted Stock
to Participants in such amounts as the Administrator shall determine, in its sole discretion, provided
that during any Fiscal Year, no Service Provider will receive grants of Restricted Stock Units/
Restricted Stock for more than an aggregate of 25,000 Shares of Restricted Stock. Notwithstanding the
foregoing limitation, in connection with his or her initial service as a Service Provider, a Service
Provider may be granted an aggregate of up to an additional 25,000 Shares of Restricted Stock and/or
Shares of Restricted Stock underlying Restricted Stock Units. The foregoing limitations shall be
adjusted proportionately in connection with any change in the Company’s capitalization as described in
Section 135.

Issue and Vesting Date(s). At the time of the grant of Restricted Stock Units or Restricted Stock, the
Administrator shall establish issue and vesting date(s) with respect to the Restricted Stock. The
Administrator may divide the Restricted Stock into classes and assign different issue dates or vesting
schedules to such classes.

Repurchase Option. Each Restricted Stock Unit or Restricted Stock grant shall be evidenced by an
Award Agreement. The Award Agreement will grant the Company a repurchase option with respect to
any unvested Shares of Restricted Stock, exercisable upon the voluntary or involuntary termination of
the Service Provider’s relationship with the Company for any reason (including death or Disability).
The purchase price for Shares repurchased pursuant to the Award Agreement will be the original
purchase price paid for the Shares, if any, and may be paid by cancellation of any indebtedness of the
purchaser to the Company. The repurchase option will lapse at a rate determined by the Administrator.

Other Restrictions. The Administrator shall impoese such other conditions and/or restrictions on the .
Restricted Stock Units/Restricted Stock granted pursuant to the Plan as it may deem advisable
including, without limitation, a requirement that Participants pay a stipulated purchase price for each
share of Restricted Stock and/or restrictions under applicable federal or state securities laws.

Rights as a Shareholder. The holder of Restricted Stock shall have the rights equivalent to those of a
shareholder and may exercise full voting powers with respected to the Restricted Stock during the
restriction period.

Dividends And Other Distributions. During the period of restriction, Participants holding Restricted
Stock granted hereunder may, if the Administrator so determines, be credited with regular cash
dividends paid with respect to the underlying Shares while they are so held. The Administrator may
apply any restrictions to the dividends that the Administrator deems appropriate. Without limiting the
generality of the preceding sentence, if the grant or vesting of Restricted Stock granted to a Participant
is designed to comply with the requirements of “performance-based compensation” under Section
162(m) of the Code, the Administrator may apply any restrictions it deems appropriate to the payment
of dividends declared with respect to such Restricted Stock, such that the dividends and/or the
Restricted Stock maintain eligibility therefor.
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8. Stock Grants.

(a)

(b)

Stock Grants. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, the Administrator, at any time and from
time to time, may award Stock Grants in such amounts as the Administrator shall determine, in its sole
discretion, provided that during any Fiscal Year, no Service Provider will receive Stock Grants for
more than an aggregate of 25,000 Shares of Common Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing limitation,
in connection with his or her initial service as a Service Provider, a Service Provider may be granted an
aggregate of up to an additional 25,000 Shares pursuant to Stock Grants. The foregoing limitations
shall be adjusted proportionately in connection with any change in the Company’s capitalization as
described in Section 15.

Restrictions. Generally, Shares issued in connection with a Stock Grant will not have any vesting

~ requirements or other restrictions; provided, however, that the Administrator may impose such other

conditions and/or restrictions on the Common Stock issued pursuant to Stock Grants as it may deem
advisable, in its sole discretion. Each Stock Grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement.

9. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a)

(b)

(©

@

(e)

Grant of SARs. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, a SAR may be granted to Service
Providers at any time and from time to time as will be determined by the Administrator, in its sole
discretion, provided that during any Fiscal Year, no Service Provider will be granted SARs covering
more than 25,000 Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing limitation, in connection with his or her initial
service as a Service Provider, a Service Provider may be granted SARs covering up to an additional
25,000 Shares. The foregoing limitations shall be adjusted proportionately in connection with any
change in the Company’s capitalization as described in Section 15. The Administrator may grant
Freestanding SARs, Tandem SARs, or any combination thereof.

Base Value and Other Terms. The Administrator, subject to the provisions of the Plan, will have
complete discretion to determine the terms and conditions of SARs granted under the Plan. The base
value of Tandem SARs will equal the exercise price of the related Option; provided, however, that the
base value of a SAR shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of a
Share on the grant date. A SAR may be exercised for all or any portion of the Shares as to which it is
exercisable; provided, that no partial exercise of a SAR shall be for an aggregate base value of less than
$1,000. The partial exercise of a SAR shall not cause the expiration, termination or cancellation of the
remaining portion thereof.

Exercise of Tandem SARs. Tandem SARs may be exercised for all or part of the Shares subject to the
related Option upon the surrender of the right to exercise the equivalent portion of the related Option.
A Tandem SAR may be exercised only with respect to the Shares for which its related Option is then
exercisable. With respect to a Tandem SAR granted in connection with an Incentive Stock Option: (i)
the Tandem SAR will expire no later than the expiration of the underlying Incentive Stock Option; (i1)
the value of the payout with respect to the Tandem SAR will be for no more than one hundred percent
(100%) of the difference between the exercise price of the underlying Incentive Stock Option and the
Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to the underlying Incentive Stock Option at the time the
Tandem SAR is exercised; and (iii) the Tandem SAR will be exercisable only when the Fair Market
Value of the Shares subject to the Incentive Stock Option exceeds the exercise price of the Incentive
Stock Option.

Exercise of Freestanding SARs. Freestanding SARs will be exercisable on such terms and conditions as
the Administrator, in its sole discretion, will determine.

Payment of SAR Amount. Upon exercise of a SAR, a Participant will be entitled to receive payment
from the Company in Shares of equivalent value to an amount determined by multiplying:

(1) The difference between the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of exercise over the base
value; and
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(i) The number of Shares with respect to which the SAR is exercised.

Other Provisions. Each SAR grant will be evidenced by an Award Agreement that will specify the
exercise price, the term of the SAR, the conditions of exercise, and such other terms and conditions as
the Administrator, in its sole discretion, will determine.

10. Performance-Based Restrictions on Awards. Any Award granted under the Plan may vest subject to
the satisfaction of one or more performance objectives. The Administrator may set performance objectives, in its
sole discretion, and the time period during which the performance objectives must be met will be called the
“Performance Period.”

(a)

()

General Performance Objectives. The Administrator may set performance objectives based upon the
achievement of Company-wide, divisional, or individual goals, or any other basis determined by the
Administrator in its discretion.

Section 162(m) Performance Objectives. For purposes of qualifying Awards as “performance-based
compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee, in its discretion, may determine that
the performance objectives applicable to Awards will be based on the achievement of Performance
Goals. The Performance Goals will be set by the Committee on or before the latest date permissible to
enable the Awards to qualify as “performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code.
In granting Awards which are intended to qualify under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee
will follow any procedures determined by it from time to time to be necessary or appropriate to ensure
qualification of the Awards under Section 162(m) of the Code (e.g., in determining the Performance
Goals).

11. Exercise of Awards.

(a)

(®)

(©

Procedure for Exercise. Any Award granted under the Plan shall be exercisable according to the terms
of the Plan and at such times and under such conditions as determined by the Administrator and set
forth in the Award Agreement. An Award may not be exercised for a fraction of a Share. An Award
shall be deemed exercised when the Company receives: (A) written or electronic notice of exercise (in
accordance with the Award Agreement) from the person entitled to exercise the Award, and (B) full
payment, as required by the Award Agreement and the Plan, for the Shares with respect to which the
Award is exercised. Shares issued upon exercise of an Award shall be issued in the name of the
Participant or, if requested by the Participant, in the name of the Participant and his or her spouse and/
or to a trust if, under Code Section 671 and applicable state law, the Participant remains the beneficial
owner of the Shares. Exercising an Award in any manner shall decrease the number of Shares
thereafter available, both for purposes of the Plan and for issuance under the Award, by the number of
Shares as to which the Award is exercised.

Rights as a Shareholder. Until the Shares are issued (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the
books of the Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the Company), no right to vote or
receive dividends or any other rights as a sharcholder shall exist with respect to the Shares,
notwithstanding the exercise of the Award. The Company shall issue (or cause to be issued) such
Shares promptly after the Award is exercised. No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right
for which the record date is-prior to-the date the Shares-are- issued, except as provided in Section- 15 of

" the Plan.

Termination of Relationship as a Service Provider. If a Participant ceases to be a Service Provider,
other than upon the Participant’s death or Disability, the Participant may exercise, as applicable, his or
her Award to the extent that the Award is vested on the date of termination, within three (3) months
following the Participant’s termination or, in the case of an Award other than an Incentive Stock
Option, a greater/lesser period if specified in the Award Agreement (but in no event later than the
expiration of the term of such Award as set forth in the Award Agreement). If, on the date of
termination, the Participant is not vested as to his or her entire Award, the Shares covered by the
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unvested portion of the Award shall revert to the Plan; provided, however, that unvested Shares of
Restricted Stock shall not automatically revert to the Plan but shall be subject to the Company’s
repurchase option as provided in the Award Agreement. If, after termination, the Participant does not
exercise his or her Award, as applicable, within the time specified herein, the Award shall terminate,
and the Shares covered by such Award shall revert to the Plan.

Disability of Participant. If a Participant ceases to be a Service Provider as a result of the Participant’s
Disability, the Participant may exercise, as applicable, his or her Award, to the extent that the Award is
vested on the date of termination, within twelve (12) months following the Participant’s termination or,
in the case of an Award other than an Incentive Stock Option, a greater/lesser period if specified in the
Award Agreement (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such Award as set forth in
the Award Agreement). If, on the date of termination, the Participant is not vested as to his or her entire
Award, the Shares covered by the unvested portion of the Award shall revert to the Plan; provided,
however, that unvested Shares of Restricted Stock shall not automatically revert to the Plan but shall be
subject to the Company’s repurchase option as provided in the Award Agreement. If, after termination,
the Participant does not exercise his or her Award, as applicable, within the time specified herein, the
Award shall terminate, and the Shares covered by such Award shall revert to the Plan.

Death of Participant. If a Participant dies while a Service Provider, the Award may be exercised, as
applicable, by the Participant’s designated beneficiary, provided such beneficiary has been designated
prior to Participant’s death in a form acceptable to the Administrator, to the extent that the Award is
vested on the date of termination, within twelve (12) months following Participant’s death or a greater/
lesser period if specified in the Award Agreement (but in no event later than the expiration of the term
of such Award as set forth in the Award Agreement). If no such beneficiary has been designated by the
Participant, then such Award may be exercised by the personal representative of the Participant’s estate
or by the person(s) to whom the Award is transferred pursuant to the Participant’s will or in accordance
with the laws of descent and distribution. If, at the time of death, Participant is not vested as to his or
her entire Award, the Shares covered by the unvested portion of the Award shall immediately revert to
the Plan; provided, however, that unvested Shares of Restricted Stock shall not automatically revert to
the Plan but shall be subject to the Company’s repurchase option as provided in the Award Agreement.
If the Award is not so exercised, as applicable, within the time specified herein, the Award shall
terminate, and the Shares covered by such Award shall revert to the Plan.

12. Form of Consideration. The Administrator shall determine the acceptable form of consideration for
exercising an Award, including the method of payment. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the
Administrator shall determine the acceptable form of consideration at the time of grant. Such consideration may
consist entirely of:

(a)
(b)
(©

(d

e

®
(2

cash;
check;

other Shares which, in the case of Shares acquired directly or indirectly from the Company, (i) have
been owned by the Participant for more than six (6) months on the date of surrender, and (ii) have a
Fair Market Value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate exercise price of the Shares as to
which said Award shall be exercised;

consideration received by the Company under a cashless exercise program implemented by the
Company in connection with the Plan;

a reduction in the amount of any Company liability to the Participant, including any liability
attributable to the Participant’s participation in any Company-sponsored deferred compensation
program or arrangement;

any combination of the foregoing methods of payment; or

such other consideration and method of payment for the issuance of Shares to the extent permitted by
Applicable Laws.

A-10




13. Transferability of Awards. Unless determined otherwise by the Administrator, Awards may not be
sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred, or disposed of in any manner other than by will or by the laws
of descent or distribution and may be exercised, during the lifetime of the Participant, only by the Participant. If
the Administrator makes an Award transferable, such Award shall contain such additional terms and conditions
as the Administrator deems appropriate.

14. Leaves of Absence. Unless the Administrator provides otherwise, vesting of Awards granted hereunder
will be suspended during any unpaid leave of absence. A Service Provider will not cease to be an Employee in
the case of any leave of absence approved by the Company. For purposes of Incentive Stock Options, no such
leave may exceed ninety (90) days, unless reemployment upon expiration of such leave is guaranteed by statute
or contract. If reemployment upon expiration of a leave of absence approved by the Company is not so
guaranteed, then three (3) months following the 91s day of such leave any Incentive Stock Option held by the
Participant will cease to be treated as an Incentive Stock Option and will be treated for tax purposes as a
Nonstatutory Stock Option. : : :

15. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization, Merger or Change in Control.

(@) Changes in Capitalization. Subject to any required action by the shareholders of the Company, the
number of Shares of Common Stock that have been authorized for issuance under the Plan but as to
which no Awards have yet been granted or which have been returned to the Plan upon cancellation or
expiration of an Award, the number of Shares that may be added annually to the Plan pursuant to
Section 3(a), the number of Shares of Common Stock as well as the price per share of Common Stock
covered by each such outstanding Award, and the numerical Share limits in Sections 3(a), 6(a), 7(a),
8(a) and 9(a) shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued
Shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination
or reclassification of the Common Stock, or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued
Shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of consideration by the Company: provided,
however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the Company shall not be deemed to have
been “effected without receipt of consideration.” Such adjustment shall be made by the Board, whose
determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly provided
herein, no issuance by the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares
of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment by reason thereof shall be made with respect to,
the number or price of Shares of Common Stock subject to an Award.

(b) Dissolution or Liguidation. In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the
Administrator shall notify each Participant as soon as practicable prior to the effective date of such
proposed transaction. The Administrator in its discretion may provide for a Participant to have the right
to exercise his or her Award until ten (10) days prior to such transaction as to all Shares covered
thereby, including Shares as to which the Award would not otherwise be exercisable. In addition, the
Administrator may provide that any Company repurchase option applicable to any Restricted Stock
shall lapse as to all such Shares, provided the proposed dissolution or liquidation takes place at the time
and in the manner contemplated. To the extent it has not been previously exercised, an Award will
terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action.

(¢) Merger or Change in Control. In the event of a merger of the Company with or into another
corporation, or a Change in Control, each outstanding Award shall be assumed or an equivalent option
or right substituted by the successor corporation or a Parent or Subsidiary of the successor corporation.

In the event that the successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for the Award, the Participant
shall fully vest in and have the right to exercise his or her Awards as to all Shares covered thereby, including
Shares as to which such Awards would not otherwise be vested or exercisable. All restrictions on Restricted
Stock or other vesting criteria will lapse, as determined by the Board. In addition, if an Award becomes fully
vested and exercisable in lieu of assumption or substitution in the event of a Change in Control, the
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Administrator shall notify the Participant in writing or electronically that the Award shall be fully vested and
exercisable for a period of fifteen (15) days from the date of such notice, and the Award shall terminate upon the
expiration of such period.

For the purposes of this subsection (c), an Award shall be considered assumed if, following the merger or
Change in Control, the Award confers the right to purchase or receive, for each Share subject to the Award
immediately prior to the merger or Change in Control, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other securities
or property); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the merger or Change in Control is not
solely common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent, the Administrator may, with the consent of the
successor corporation, provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of the Award, for each
Share subject to such Award, to be solely common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent equal in fair
market value to the per share consideration received by holders of Common Stock in the merger or Change in
Control.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 15(c) to the contrary, an Award that vests, is earned or paid-out
upon the satisfaction of one or more Performance Goals, will not be considered assumed if the Company or its
successor modifies any of such Performance Goals without the Participant’s consent; provided, however, a
modification to such Performance Goals only to reflect the successor corporation’s post-Change in Control
corporate structure will not be deemed to invalidate an otherwise valid Award assumption.

16. No Effect on Employment or Service. Neither the Plan nor any Award shall confer upon a Participant
any right with respect to continuing the Participant’s relationship as a Service Provider with the Company, nor
shall they interfere in any way with the Participant’s right or the Company’s right to terminate such relationship
at any time, with or without cause.

17. Date of Grant. The date of grant of an Award shall be, for all purposes, the date on which the
Administrator makes the determination granting such Award, or such other later date as is determined by the
Administrator. Notice of the determination shall be provided to each Participant within a reasonable time after -
the date of such grant.

18. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares.

(a) Legal Compliance. Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Award unless the exercise
of such Award and the issuance and delivery of such Shares shall comply with Applicable Laws and
shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such compliance.

(b) Investinent Representations. As a condition to the exercise of an Award, the Company may require the
person exercising such Award to represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares
are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such
Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required.

19. Inability to Obtain Authority. The inability of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory
body having jurisdiction, which authority is deemed by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful
issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder, shall relieve the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to
issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite authority shall not have been obtained.

20. Reservation of Shares. The Company, during the term of this Plan, will at all times reserve and keep
available such number of Shares as shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Plan.

21. Withholding Taxes.

(a) Cash. Whenever cash is to be paid pursuant to an Award, the Company shall have the right to deduct
therefrom an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local withholding tax requirements
related thereto.
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(b) Shares. Whenever Shares are to be delivered pursuant to an Award, the Company shall have the right
to require the Participant to remit to the Company in cash an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal,
state and local withholding tax requirements related thereto. With the approval of the Administrator, in
its sole discretion, a Participant may satisfy the foregoing requirement by electing to have the Company
withhold from delivery Shares having a value equal to the amount of tax to be withheld. Such Shares
shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the date as of which the amount of tax to be withheld is
determined. Fractional share amounts shall be settled in cash. Such a withholding election may be
made with respect to all or any portion of the Shares to be delivered pursuant to an Award. All
elections by a Participant to have Shares withheld for these purposes shall be made in such form and
under such conditions as the Administrator may deem necessary or advisable. The Company shall not
be required to issue any Shares under the Plan until such tax obligations are satisfied.

22. Notification of Election Under Section 83(b) of The Code. If any Participant shall, in connection with
the acquisition of Shares under the Plan, make the election permitted under Section 83(b) of the Code (i.e., an
election to include in gross income in the year of transfer the amounts specified in Section 83(b)), such
Participant shall notify the Company of such election within ten (10) days of filing notice of the election with the
Internal Revenue Service, in addition to any filing and notification required pursuant to regulations issued under
the authority of Code Section 83(b).

23. Escrow. Each share of Restricted Stock issued pursuant to the terms of the Plan which has not vested
shall be held in escrow pursuant to the terms of the Award Agreement. The Company may retain the certificates
representing the Restricted Stock in the Company’s possession until such time as all conditions and/or
restrictions applicable to such Shares have been satisfied.

24. Shareholder Approval; Term. The Plan shall be subject to, and shall become effective upon, approval
by the shareholders of the Company, which shall be obtained within twelve (12) months after the date the Plan is
adopted by the Board. Such sharcholder approval shall be obtained in the manner and to the degree required
under Applicable Laws. The Plan shall continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years from its effective date
unless terminated earlier under Section 25 of the Plan.

25. Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

(a) * Amendment and Termination. The Board may at anytime amend, alter; suspend or terminate- the-Plam. -~ -~~~

(b) Shareholder Approval. The Company shall obtain shareholder approval of any Plan amendment to the
extent necessary and desirable to comply with Applicable Laws.

(c) Effect of Amendment or Termination. No amendment, alteration, suspension or termination of the Plan
shall impair the rights of any Participant, unless mutually agreed otherwise between the Participant and
the Administrator, which agreement must be in writing and signed by the Participant and the Company.
Termination of the Plan shall not affect the Administrator’s ability to exercise the powers granted to it
hereunder with respect to Options granted under the Plan prior to the date of such termination.
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